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FEFS
Wﬁ o Message from the Chairman

It is 30 years since the establishment of the Occupational Safety and Health Council for the mission of improving
the workplace safety and health standards in Hong Kong. In these 3 decades, the Council has been working
closely with the government, trade associations, unions and the community to enhance the safety management
standards and fostering the growth of a strong safety culture, enabling everyone to enjoy a safe and healthy
working environment.

Human resources are the important assets of the companies and societies. We believe that a sound safety
management system and higher safety awareness are the keys to fewer accidents. We focus on different
industries with targeted promotional work. The large scale Construction Safety Promotional Campaign that we
jointly organised with the Labour Department, associations, unions and stakeholders has been a successful
project for 19 consecutive years. 2 new awards-“Best Safety Enhancement Program for Lifting” and “Best
Health Protection Program for Employees” — were introduced to encourage best practices from operators and
contractors to implement better protection for the workers and personnel working in the lifting operation. As our
bold attempt to address the problem of serious accidents related to work-at-height, the Council and the Labour
Department jointly launched the “Pilot Partnership Scheme on Provision of Light-duty Working Platform for
Property Management Companies”. Working platforms are provided to property management companies free of
charge enabling their contractors and workers to have a proper working platform when working at height.

Catering safety is also one of the highlights of our work. The “OSH Star Restaurant Scheme” is well-received by
the catering industry, drawing 168 catering groups participating, while 15 restaurants have been accredited as the
OSH Star Restaurants. Their determination to enhance safety and health performance are evident. Our Catering
Safety and Health Promotional Campaign aims to disseminate safety information to the employers and employees
through outreaching to the restaurants, distributing lucky bags, quizzes and personal protective equipment
sponsorship schemes.

Our physical health and mental wellbeing are as important. We collaborate with the Department of Health and
the Labour Department to launch the Joyful@Healthy Workplace campaign aiming to create a happy and healthy
working environment for all. We encourage both employers and employees working together to create a healthy
and joyful working environment through a series of learning activities, including healthy eating, physical activity and
mental wellbeing. It is inspiring that over 1,300 organisations comprising 400,000 employees have signed up our
charter to implement facilitating measures since the launch of this campaign.

OSH improvement begins with individual basic safety training. Sponsored by The Innovation and Technology
Fund-Public Sector Trial Scheme, we collaborated with the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing System
Engineering of the Faculty of Engineering, Hong Kong University to establish the OSH Immersive Experience Hall
at our OSH Academy. It is equipped with the latest technology creating vivid experience for trainees through virtual
and augmented reality, three-dimensional images, and fully immersive and interactive visualization facilities. This
allows the trainees to experience the serious consequences of unsafe behaviour under safe conditions. The first
customised scenario simulates the high-risk working environment with truss-out scaffolds at external walls. This
initiative is well-received by the industry. The Council would develop more scenarios for different industries in the
future to enhance the training experience for trainees.

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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FEFS
Wﬁ o Message from the Chairman

In tune with the social needs for OSH training, we have introduced new training courses covering different issues
of concern. For example, the rising concern of strengthening mental health and wellbeing in recent years have
led us to explore and design a new training course on Mental Health First Aid. It provides effective techniques
and skills for identification of common emotional disorders and mental health problems at workplaces for early
intervention. The massive destruction brought by the super typhoon in Hong Kong last year have caused a large
number of fallen trees and many workers were deployed for the clean-up. Chainsaws are often used in the tree
trimming and removal. We actively promoted our “Safe Use of Chainsaws” certificate course to the relevant
industry stakeholders ensuring the workers are competent in operating the chainsaws safely and effectively.

Outreaching to the public on the importance of workplace safety and health is always our top priority. Therefore,
we strive to keep pace with the times by delivering the latest information through the social media platforms
including Facebook, Instagram, YouTube channels, websites and applications. We involved famous artistes in
producing promotional videos and posters to fully engage the public on different OSH issues in a lighthearted
matter.

Quality education forms a solid foundation for good work-safety culture, through various activities, competitions
and school tours, the Council instilled the concept of OSH in young people by inspiring them to develop a safety
mindset for safe behaviour. To cater for the needs of ethnic minorities, we provide them with useful information in
various languages through targeted promotion. We hope everyone will contribute in making our community safe
and healthy.

Partnership for Safety for 30 years! We expressed our heartfelt appreciation to the government, trade associations
and unions, corporations, district organisations for the long time commitment and support for safety-at-work.
We are also indebted to the contributions of previous Council chairmen, vice-chairmen, members and industry
representatives laying a strong foundation for the Council to grow and shine. Looking ahead, “Zero Accident” is
a common vision to strive for by everyone. Despite all the challenges, the Council is committed to build up the
capacity of the employers, employees and our next generation in their safety awareness and knowledge, and
going all fronts to promote a strong safety culture. Together we could realize the vision of Zero Accident and
making Hong Kong a safe and healthy place to work and to live.

Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP

Chairman
Occupational Safety and Health Council

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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HONG KONG LAUNCH

10 - 2018
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The Hon Matthew CHEUNG Kin-chung, Chief Secretary for Administration, and Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, Chairman of the Council, were joined by
Council Members and guests in the cake-cutting ceremony to celebrate the 30" anniversary.
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30 Years of Partnership for Safety Building Vision Zero

Established for 30 years, the Council is growing with
Hong Kong and changing with the times. We are
committed to building a safe and healthy society and
joining hands with the community to create a better
Hong Kong through extensive promotion, education
and professional support on all fronts.

To celebrate the 30" anniversary, the Council organised
the OSH Excellence Award cum Global Vision Zero
Campaign Hong Kong Launch ceremony to recognise
those outstanding organisations for their OSH
promotion and achievement over the past 30 years.
We thank everyone for their years of contribution in
creating a safe, healthy working environment for their
employees.
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OSHC celebrated the 30"
anniversary with the launch of the
“Vision Zero Campaign” and
became the eighth participating
region.
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In these 3 decades, we have seen a steady growth of
safety and health awareness in the community which
helps building a strong safety culture in Hong Kong.
Industries of different sectors have increasingly placed
great importance on protecting their employees from
workplace hazards. These changes saw a gradual
reduction in the numbers of occupational injuries
and incidents. The joint effort of government, trade
associations, unions, enterprises and everyone in the
community contributed towards this success.
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Guests came from far and wide to celebrate the Council’s 30" anniversary. (Left)
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Mr. Hans-Horst Konkolewsky, Secretary General of International Social Security Association, and other distinguished speakers

shared how to realise the “Vison Zero”. (Right)
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30 Years of Partnershlp for Safety Building Vision Zero
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The Hon Matthew CHEUNG Kin-chung, Chief Secretary for Administration officiated at this important celebration.
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The Hon Matthew CHEUNG Kin-chung, Chief Secretary for Administration, and Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, Chairman of the Council, presented the OSH
Excellence Award to the leading organisations.
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BZET=Z1T% HAAZTETHE=
30 Years of Partnership for Safety Building Vision Zero

However, cultivation with care and enthusiasm is
essential for a young tree to become strong and
sturdy. We need to build a strong foundation for the
safety culture to grow and flourish.

Therefore, we launched the Global Vision Zero
Campaign in Hong Kong to become the 8th region-
participant supporting this campaign initiated by the
International Social Security Association (ISSA). The
campaign integrates three aspects, namely, safety,
health and well-being at work, with seven golden
rules, which are ‘take leadership — demonstrate
commitment’, ‘identify hazards and risks’, ‘set safety
and health targets’, ‘ensure a safe and healthy
system’, ‘ensure safety and health in machines,
equipment and workplaces’, ‘improve qualifications’
and ‘invest in people’. The Vision Zero concept is put
into practice through different areas of work.

The Vision Zero is not confined to the workplace. The
life and health of our fellow citizens also matter to
us. The Vision Zero concept is a holistic approach to
safety and health not confining to workplace hazards
but also caring for the mental health and wellbeing

a8

of everyone. We encourage the active participation
of enterprises and organisations in the Vision Zero
campaign, apart from creating a safe and healthy
working environment for their employees, their
psychological and mental wellbeing would also be
focused. With this, we would be truly moving towards
the goal of Vision Zero.

This journey of 30 years is a major milestone for the
Council. We would continue to work hand in hand with
all stakeholders and people of Hong Kong to create
a safe and healthy community reaching the goal of
Vision Zero.
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The Council produced beautiful
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i | stamps using the winning entries
; of the All Win for OSH - Sharing
® and Caring Stamp Design

Competition to promote safety
culture.
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The Council organised the

All Win for OSH - Sharing

and Caring Stamp Design
Competition to encourage
students to deliver OSH
messages in a creative way.
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Promotion on All Fronts
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The Construction Safety Day is organised annually to promote
occupational safety through various activities and recognise
outstanding organisations at the award ceremony.
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Through participating in the Catering Safety Quiz, companies are
facilitating their employees to enhance their OSH knowledge.
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PHER ZRERIT

Promotion on All Fronts

Fostering safety culture and drawing public attention to OSH are our top priority. For many years, we
have aimed to cover different OSH issues and reach people from all walks of life through comprehensive
publicity strategies and extensive promotion. We hope the community will join hands with us and pursue

the goal of “Zero Accident” in the long run.

ENHANCING OSH IN HIGH-RISK
INDUSTRIES

Construction Industry

The construction industry plays a major role in Hong
Kong’s economic development. It is essential that
construction workers have a strong OSH awareness,
no matter in large infrastructure projects, redevelopment
projects or minor renovation works. During the year,
the Council worked with the Labour Department,
other government departments and organisations in
organising the 19th Construction Safety Promotional
Campaign, with the theme of work-at-height and safe
lifting. Through various activities such as seminars
and competitions, we promoted the importance
of construction safety. In addition to recognising
outstanding OSH companies, we invited them to share
with the participants their experience of organising OSH
activities for a safer and healthier working environment.
We also continued to visit large construction sites,
disseminating OSH messages to local and ethnic
minority front-line workers.

The Council is concerned about the health of
construction workers while promoting work safety.
Therefore, we launched the “Healthy Lifestyle
Promotion for Construction Workers”, with dietitians
and fitness instructors visiting construction sites during
the lunch hour and explaining the benefits of healthy
eating and exercise, inviting the front-line workers to
care about their well-being after work.

BEFENIFZ2ESET  XEEBBE THIGRIEES  [HHRE
IREE  HLEINRE -

Work safety in the construction industry is an issue of concern. The
Council stepped up promotion for front-line workers through seminars,
construction site visits and competitions to prevent accidents.

Catering Industry

The OSH of catering industry has been a concern of
the Council and the society. While organisations and
practitioners have a higher awareness, the number of
accidents is still high, so there is an imminent need to
step up promotion. The OSH Star Restaurant Scheme,
has attracted the participation of 168 catering groups
and over 1,000 outlets. Through professional review
and training, the scheme supports the employers to
improve on the safety of employees so as to reduce
the occurance of accidents.

The Council jointly organised the 5™ Catering
Safety Quiz with the Labour Department, catering
associations and trade unions. Well received by the
industry, the quiz had more than 50 participating
teams this year. Employees could improve their safety
knowledge through the event and raise their OSH
awareness, facilitating the development of a strong
safety culture.

We also help front-line workers to understand the
importance of occupational safety through promotional
videos, restaurant visits and the distribution of lucky
bags. To further encourage employers to maintain a
safe working environment, we continued to organise
the Sponsorship Scheme on Cut Resistant Gloves,
Slip Resistant Shoes and Heat Resistant Gloves to
encourage use of proper safety equipment to better
protect the catering workers.

BREBNBLERR BT EBERENTHFRIES  BEEIIRIB LK FEE
Restaurants accreditated under the OSH Star Restaurant Scheme

have received professional assessment and training to prove that they
achieved the required OSH standards.

Occupational Safety and Health Council ¢ Annual Report 2018-2019
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Promotion on All Fronts
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Professionals at the Joyful@Healthy Workplace provided consultancy
services for employers to establish a healthy workplace.
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Work-life balance is increasingly valued. Through the Joyful@Healthy
Workplace, companies were encouraged to care about the health of
their employees.
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OSH PROMOTION ON ALL FRONTS

Joyful@Healthy Workplace

We believe that a safe working environment can
reduce the occurance of accidents, and a healthy
workplace is as important. The Joyful@Healthy
Workplace promotion features Workshops held at
the workplace of participating organisations, with the
theme of mental health, healthy eating and physical
activity to enhance the knowledge of companies and
employees. Professionals provided customised one-
on-one advisory services to help companies promote
a healthy workplace. Health Check-up Kit are available
on-loans for companies to encourage their employees
to measure their own health.

This year, we collaborated with the Mental Health
Association of Hong Kong to organise the Mental
Health First Aid course, which focuses on emotional
disorders and mental health problems commonly seen
in recent years. Participants learnt to care about the
mental health of their colleagues by identifying possible
emotional or psychological distress and provide timely
assistance. Over 1,300 companies have already
signed up and committed to promoting a healthy and
joyful workplace.

Occupational Health Promotion and Occupational
Health Conference

Occupational diseases cause problems to many
employees. Over the years the Council has carried
out different occupational health promotion including

4 ‘ o |
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In addition to work safety and health, we actively visited residential care
homes, schools and housing estates to promote the importance of a
safe community.

PHER ZRERIT

Promotion on All Fronts

talks and information dissemination to highlight the
importance of occupational health. We also launched
the Occupational Health Award and invited winners
of Joyful@Healthy Workplace Best Practices Award,
Hearing Conservation Best Practices Award and
Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Best Practices Award
to share their successful experiences. During the year,
we organised the Occupational Health Conference
engaging local and overseas experts and participants
in discussing the causes and signs of work burnout
and its preventive measures. Experts also shared
their findings on losses arising from work stress.
Participants could try out stress tests on-site. It is
hoped that both employers and employees would
address the problem of work stress and burnout for
long-term productivity and competitiveness.

As temperature continues to rise in Hong Kong's
summer, we partnered with the Labour Department
and other organisations to launch the Prevention of
Heat Stroke at Work Campaign, distributing leaflets
about heat stroke prevention at various housing
estates and construction sites. The potential hazard of
working under hot weather were broadcasted on radio
and online platforms, reminding the outdoor workers
to take appropriate preventive measures to reduce
the risk of heat stroke. Moreover, to reduce possible
muscle strain injury due to work with repetitive
movements, long-time standing or in the same
posture, the Council actively promoted the awareness
of musculoskeletal disorders as well as proper posture
to the employers and employees.

BEEE -
We provided In-house workshops and talks on healthy eating and
physical activities in the workplace.
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Property management companies often need to use working platforms
for maintenance work. We launched the Pilot Partnership Scheme on
Provision of Light-duty Working Platform for Property Management
Companies, providing light-duty platforms for lending to ensure work
safety.
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Work under hot weather may cause heat stroke. We reached out to
frontline workers the importance of outdoor work safety.
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Winners of the Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Award
shared their successful experiences with the participants.
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Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Award
The Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health
Award aims to recognise organisations with
outstanding OSH achievements. This year, there
was an overwhelming response with over 300
entries competing for nine awards. One of the major
awards, was given to a company that has accepted
a suggestion for improvement made by front-line
employees, showing the company’s determination to
protect their employees’ safety-at-work. The sharing of
other winners also brought benefits to the participants.
We hope that they are inspired to enhance Hong
Kong’s OSH standards together.

Good Housekeeping Promotional Campaign

A properly arranged workplace is essential in
protecting employees’ work safety and health.
The 5S workplace management tool is an effective
housekeeping technique for the workplace. In addition
to distributing kits, posters and other promotional
materials, we organised the Good Housekeeping
Competition with entries from organisations of various
industries such as construction, catering and property
management. They shared their experience and
strategies regarding the implementation of 5S. This
demonstrates that more organisations have committed
to creating a safe and healthy working environment.

ARRZPEERBFELDHRE  BRBEIERTRERERA %S  E
BITRER -

As OSH is increasingly valued, organisation with good OSH
performance are leading examples for their industries.

PHER ZRERIT

Promotion on All Fronts

Best Property Safety Management Award

Property management services are multidisciplined
including security, cleaning, horticulture and facility
repair and maintenance, which involve a number of
OSH challenges such as working at height, working
in confined spaces, renovation and maintenance,
and chemical use. We organised the “Best Property
Safety Management Award” not only to recognise
organisations and contractors for effectively
implementing safety management systems but also
to encourage the sharing and exchanging of best
practices.

T LIES B BRI AR ETEFIIRNEIN KRB BEREANL S ZFAG
BEFI AR + LUK AMTETTRER (E NN F & A4

Slips and falls in the workplace are common accidents across
industries. The Council invited professionals to share their experience in
prevention and the knowledge of balance training.

£ .
ERHBZRA RS BREELE —ELITIER B EETBLYZE T
Our OSH ambassadors played games with students at school so that
they could learn about OSH from the interesting activities.
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Artistes visited schools and taught students simple exercises to

encourage the development of this habit.
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Improper use of hazardous chemicals can cause danger. The Council The Council promoted OSH among ethnic minorities and visited
organised the annual Seminar on Chemical Safety with experts sharing construction sites to remind them about work safety.

their experience to increase public awareness.
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Building a Safe and Healthy Community

Through the Safe Community Programme, we joined
hands with District Councils and organisations to
carry out a variety of health and safety activities
with a view to fostering OSH culture on all fronts.
We also held the Safe Community Seminar, where
outstanding organisations from Hong Kong Safe
and Healthy Estate, Hong Kong Safe and Healthy
Residential Care Home, International Safe Schools and
International Safe Workplace shared their experience
of implementing the schemes, for example, the
integration of school education and safety to provide a
safe learning environment, and the establishment of a
joyful hospital workplace. The participants exchanged
their experiences in building a safe and healthy
community together.

OSH Education at Young Ages

We believe that OSH concepts can be instilled in
youngsters. For many years, we have delivered OSH
messages to youth through dynamic promotional
campaigns. During the year, our joint “All Win for OSH
— Sharing and Caring Stamp Design Competition” with
Metro Radio received over 1,500 entries. Students
were able to learn OSH from the creative process.
As Honorary OSH ambassadors, artistes Cherry
Ngan and Dickson Yu toured different primary and
secondary schools disseminating safety messages to
young people.

FHE TRk

TR IELBEREREFHES  BITEWEEERE T EREENEE
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Wrong posture at work would cause problems such as back pain. We
organised talks to educate the school staff for better understanding of
the importance of back protection.

PEHER ZRERT

Promotion on All Fronts

We coorganised the “Teenpower 2018/19” promotion
with the Radio Television Hong Kong and invited
young artistes to take part in the promotional video
and posters. One of the promotional activities was
“OSH Sport Towel Design Competition”. We hope that
teenagers would be inspired by different activities and
understand the importance of safety and health at their
part-time job.

Strengthened Promotion to Ethnic Minorities

Promotion for ethnic minorities is also our focus.
During the year, we continued to broadcast the
“OSH Tips for Domestic Helpers” drama on the
radio to convey OSH messages to ethnic minorities.
Information booklets in different languages were
produced for distribution. Funds were also allocated to
organisations for promoting OSH to ethnic minorities.

Occupational safety is everyone’s responsibility. OSHC
is committed to disseminating OSH information to
the public. Through diversified and comprehensive
promotional campaigns, we would raise public
awareness on workplace safety and health. Together
we uphold safety and health, and build a prosperous
community where people can live and work safely.

HIEY [BE TR EEREETE | #ARENEE  EERELZHTIF
We did exercise with drivers in our Professional Driver Promotional
Campaign, thereby promoting healthy lifestyle and work-life balance.
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The Professional Diploma in Applied Occupational Safety and Health
covers a wide range of topics ranging from safety and health legislation,
accident prevention technology, practical site safety inspection, etc.,
focusing on both theory and practice.
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Many employees suffer from emotional disorder caused by work
pressure and hectic life. The Council organised relevant courses and
seminars to strengthen public awareness.

Chemical Safety Conference and 3™ Graduation Ceremony of
Professional Diploma in Applied Occupational Safety and Health

KEH [EFIB¥ELZERBEEXE R | BEREFTEF  HLMIIEEELUBA - GEIEH T 1T R B L EKF -
Students of different backgrounds have enrolled in this year’s Professional Diploma in Applied Occupational Safety and Health apply what they have
learnt to their work to help enhance OSH standards across industries.
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BAEN MR
Building Capacities through
Effective Training

As the society continues to progress, there is an increasing public awareness of OSH. Provision of
effective safety and health training to workers plays a crucial role for safety knowledge transfer to ensure
their work competences and building a preventive culture. As a Qualifications Framework (QF) accredited
OSH training provider, the Council keeps pace with the times introducing diversified training courses that
combine theory and practice. We look forward to working with other organisations, employees and the

general public to improve Hong Kong’s OSH standards.

PREMIUM AND PROFESSIONAL QF
COURSES

The higher public OSH awareness drives a higher
demand for quality training courses. The Professional
Diploma in Applied Occupational Safety and Health,
a Qualifications Framework QF Level 4 programme,
was held for the third time this year. The curriculum
integrates theory and practice to nurture OSH
professionals. This programme, together with the
Certificate in Safety and Health for Supervisors
(Construction), a QF Level 3 course of the Council,
have been successfully re-accredited during the year
to ensure that the quality of both programmes meet
the QF standards which are widely recognized in Hong
Kong.

FBHIBZ K -

We care about the needs of various industries and organise different
courses in response to social development, thereby raising Hong
Kong’s OSH standards on all fronts.

VARIOUS PUBLIC COURSES FOR THE
NEEDS OF SOCIETY

The Council keeps abreast of social development
trends and provides OSH training courses in response
to various needs. In light of heightened concerns about
emotional disorders and mental health problems, the
Council collaborated with the Kwai Chung Hospital to
launch the Mental Health First Aid Standard Course,
which is taught by professional psychiatric practitioners.
This enables students to identify common emotional
disorders and mental problems early to help prevent
the problem from deteriorating. In addition, we organise
various practical courses for high-risk industries such
as construction, renovation and maintenance, and
catering in response to industry needs. To assist SMEs
with limited resources, we provide them with special
fee offers to encourage participation of companies and
employees in establishing a safe working environment.

FERZZ2ZHER TETEHERIE  FHESIBAGET © Z3RE
FHERBERME - TERRIZ AN R B BRIGEEHL I

Working in confined space without safety knowledge may cause
casualties. Targeted courses provide training based on relevant danger,
safety measures and risk assessment.
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Lifting operation is of high risk. The Council organised the Safe Use of
Lifting Appliances and Lifting Gear course to train the participants on
the hazards involving in lifting operations and the respective control
measures.
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Work-at-height often causes industrial accidents. Frontline workers
safety knowledge is strengthened through practical training.
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It is essential to manage medical waste properly. The Management

of Clinical Waste and Infection Control course was provided to give
trainees an understanding of relevant laws and the hazard of medical
waste.
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CUSTOMISED AND TARGETED
COURSES

To enhance the effectiveness of training, it is essential
to tailor-made training courses based on the actual
conditions and working environment. We develop
training courses for different industries in public and
private sectors in line with their needs, so that the
best training results can be achieved. For example,
the Council designed the “lLeadership Training for
Site Supervision Team” for Hong Kong Electric Co
Ltd., with a special focus on the supervisory and
communication skills required for construction safety
leaders to strengthen their staff management skills and
efficiency. We were also commissioned by The Hong
Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel to
deliver a training course on laboratory work safety in
order to improve the safety of personnel working in the
laboratory setting.
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The targeted training courses for the private sector include theory and
practice. Trainees need to pass the examinations to ensure they have
proper knowledge of the required safety measures.

BAEN MR
Building Capacities through
Effective Training

Furthermore, we organised the two-day training
course on “Anchor Devices For Fall Protection
System-Standard, Installation Practice, Application
& Inspection” for the renovation and maintenance
works personnel of CLP Power Hong Kong Ltd to
improve their safety at work through theory, practice
and examinations. We also offered a comprehensive
training course “Safety at Work on Truss-out Scaffold
& Practices in OSH Immersive Experience Hall”,
for Hong Kong and China Gas Co Ltd. The course
covers safety measures, relevant regulations and the
application of working platforms. Trainees were given
the opportunity to work on truss-out bamboo scaffolds
at external walls in a virtual-reality context. The theory
and practice integration increased the awareness
of work-at-height safety. In addition to tailor-made
training courses, the Council collaborated with
stakeholders to organize “Construction Site Safety
Champions” training in this year. We provided the
relevant training for employees who are experienced
and valued on work safety. After completing the class,
these experienced workers not only serving as good
example of adhering to safety procedures, they are
also drivers in building a caring culture for the safety
and health of their co-workers.

BRABIRE  BPDBRALEEGTESBHISIRE  SrEMEFH TIEE
L HHEE A -

In addition to public courses, we offer customised training courses for
the private sector suitable to their work environment.
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The new OSH Immersive Experience Hall at our Tsing Yi OSH Academy provides trainees with a virtual environment to experience the importance of
safety measures.
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Arboriculture work involves work-at-height and the use of high-risk
tools. The training course is designed for staff in tree management to
carry out risk assessment to identify any dangerous tree and imminent
danger of the environment and establish the relevant control measures.

BT o ZF— /UEE R JUEER

‘%ﬁﬂﬁh&&iﬁ

ZERZEER

ARTHEFRESENRBERRZBRMALR
BROBLZEER  BERREEHR BRERE
THE-BARLE - BERE HEERRBENE

MZERTES SFHTNRERBERT SR
EHhe DAMBRRELZEZHEES  BEBE

REREHE  F_+RNESEMERELE R
FitRBET2@FESMMTENERE - HitE
A EEBERER RS IEHR  BAETF
BEBAaEE RPEBIBRAREIRR

o

1

D
ot

ST

BEIFHNZ2IRLAEE - %ﬁﬁﬂf%ﬁﬂyﬁ?iiiﬁﬁ MRE  BEF
BEBIR TIEEHERSE -

Safety training for work-at-height is particularly important. We designed
targeted courses according to various needs of organisations. Both
relevant regulations and the use of working platforms are covered.
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NEW EXPERIENTIAL TRAINING
IMPROVES EFFECTIVENESS

In order to further enhance training effectiveness,
the Council established a new OSH Immersive
Experience Hall at the OSH Academy, using the latest
3D simulation technology and immersive visualisation
technology to provide trainees with innovative,
effective, interactive, flexible and highly engaging
OSH training. The experience hall is able to simulate a
vivid scenario and the user feels like in a real working
environment. The trainee is required to follow system
instructions and complete work in the virtual setting.
When performing the task, the user will experience an
accident, from which they can learn the importance of
safety measures and thus improve the effectiveness of
training.
e
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Operating chainsaws for tree cutting is a very dangerous work. We

launched the Safe Use of Chainsaws course to provide basic safety
training and understanding of the hazards involved.
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The Council organised various public courses and strengthened training
for high-risk industries such as catering and construction to enhance
OSH performance.

ST BRERB
Building Capacities through
Effective Training

VISITING OSH ACADEMY

The Council regularly hosted visits for representatives
from overseas organisations, including International
Social Security Association, Asia Pacific Occupational
Safety and Health Organization, Korea Occupational
Safety and Health Agency, 26" Quadripartite
Conference on Occupational Safety and Health
delegation, Hubei Provincial Safety Supervision
Bureau, Labour Affairs Bureau of Macao SAR, and
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong to our Tsing Yi OSH Academy, which is well
equipped with different training facilities, including
lifting equipment, work-at-height platforms, tail lifts and
confined space, where we can exchange and share
with our overseas counterparts.

TEFITIERIEFETE TIERFRIEFTEFEE - BB RERESR
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Outdoor workers being injured by dog bite happen occasionally. Our
courses let trainees learn about dogs’ behaviour and avoid dog bites at
work.
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Fork-lift trucks are often used in construction sites and warehouses for
lifting work. The Council organised various courses on fork-lift truck
operation and strengthened the training through practical application
and demonstration.
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We organised different trainings for property management companies
to improve their OSH performance.
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High risks are involved in gas welding and flame cutting. The course
provided including safety regulations, safe storage and disposal of
cylinders and contingency response.
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Safety Training Course for Competent Persons of Confined Spaces
Operation intends to provide supervisors and safety personnel with the
essential techniques of risk assessment and proper control measure.
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DIVERSIFIED OPEN SEMINARS

As there is a keen interest in different topical OSH
issues, we organise free talks to share on a wide range
of knowledge with the public. During the year, we held
38 open seminars covering a wide range of topics
including prevention of workplace violence, infection
control in the workplace, prevention of musculoskeletal
disorders, air-conditioning works safety and safe
use of excavators. We will continue to optimise the
seminar content taking into the consideration of
participants’ feedback, and review regularly for more
effective dissemination of OSH information to people
from all walks of life.
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Tail lifts are commonly used by transport practitioners. Our training

courses include the knowledge of tail lifts, common accidents and safe
operation.
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Organising the Installation Practice of Anchor Devices for Fall Protection
System course, providing the participants with the basic knowledge
about safety requirements and application of different types of anchor
devices.

BRI EERAE
Building Capacities through
Effective Training

YOUTH TRAINING IS CRUCIAL

Teenagers are our future and the core of Hong
Kong’s productivity. Therefore, it is very important
to ensure that they have a good understanding
of OSH. To educate the students, the Council
organises Interactive Learning Experience — Workshop
on Occupational Safety and Health and the SH
Workshop@School. In addition to explaining basic
OSH concepts and inviting mentors to share their
personal experiences, there is the opportunity to
visit different training sites at the OSH Academy and
gain a better understanding of the actual working
environment, helping the students to develop a
positive working attitude while preparing themselves
for a career.

Comprehensive and effective training plays a vital role
in building a safe and high-quality community and
improving OSH in Hong Kong. The Council strives
to provide professional and quality training courses
for employees in different industries and enhance the
awareness of young people and ethnic minorities. To
better equip ourselves, we look forward to providing
more timely information and training on OSH for
different sectors, to achieving higher OSH standards in
Hong Kong.

—
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We attached great importance to OSH education among young people.
Various activities such as OSH workshops were offered to show
youngsters the importance of work safety.
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The Council provided comprehensive safety audits for large
infrastructure projects, including the independent safety audit scheme
for the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge (Hong Kong Section).
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We also gave professional advice to the property management
company who is responsible for managing the designated estates of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority regarding its safety management system
to enhance OSH performance.
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It is the Council’s objective to raise the OSH standards among different industries and encourage
enterprises to embrace the “Zero Accident” goal. Our professional consultation team possesses strong
experience and knowledge to provide industries with services including safety audits, certification, risk
assessment, and accreditation of practitioners and competent persons, supporting the industries in Hong

Kong in raising their OSH management standards.

A WIDE RANGE OF PROFESSIONAL
AUDIT AND ASSESSMENT SERVICES

Extensive safety audits, management advisory and
risk assessment services are critical in enhancing the
OSH standards of major infrastructure projects. The
dedicated team of the Council has been providing
professional services for government departments
and industries. During the year, we continued to be
commissioned by the government to take part in
major infrastructure and public housing development
projects, including the independent safety audit
scheme of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge
(Hong Kong Section) and the Housing Authority new
works contracts, and conducted regular surprise safety
inspections to ensure that the projects meeting their
safety requirements. We also provided the independent
safety audit scheme service for the maintenance and
improvement works contracts under the Housing
Authority and the new works contracts under the Hong
Kong Housing Society, helping them to develop and
manage their safety auditing systems.

The Council continues to offer consultancy services
for government departments, including expansion
of the Work Safe Behaviour Programme to various
operational units of the postal department to enhance
their employees’ safety awareness and work safe
behaviors; and carrying out risk assessment on
the specialized display screen equipment of the
department for marine works with recommendations
on the hardware design, as well as provision of a
tailor-made training programme on the safe use of
display screen equipment based on the assessment
results, in order to strengthen the compliances with
safety standards of the equipment and the operators’
health level.

In addition, we provided professional consultancy
services such as safety audits and risk assessment
for consulates, public and private sectors from varied
industries including food manufacturing, transportation
and logistics, ship repair and maintenance, international
watch dealers, printing, telecommunications, container

handling and property management, with the aim to
motivate enterprises to establish and maintain safe and
healthy workplaces.

EXPANDING CERTIFICATION SERVICES
TO RAISE SAFETY AWARENESS

The Council understands the importance of raising
OSH standards for different industries. We provide
professional certification services for the community
and organizations based on their specific needs
through the Hong Kong Safety and Health Certification
Scheme (HKSHCS). Under the scheme, certification
audits for the Safety and Health Management
System is conducted to encourage companies to
care about their staff safety and to further enhance
the OSH performance. Our certification services are
stringent and comprehensive including the OSH Star
Enterprise — RMAA Safety Accreditation Scheme, the
Pilot Scheme on OSH Star Enterprise for Recycling
Industry, the OSH Star Restaurant Scheme and Hong
Kong Safe Community Scheme, etc. By providing
customized training courses, sponsorship for safety
equipment and certification audit service, the Council
strives to collaborate with organizations to improve
safety and health in the working environment and
achieve the “Zero Accident” vision.

BB IESFIIR R R - MERE T HBZRES
We provided consultancy services for postal department to strengthen
the OSH awareness of their employees.
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The “Protective Gloves Sponsorship Scheme for SMEs of Environmental
Hygiene Industry” offers funding for SMEs purchasing protective gloves
for their employees.
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Organisations are committed to becoming OSH Star Enterprises

by participating in the “Pilot Scheme for Recycling Industry”, which
demonstrates their increasing focus on OSH performance.
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The Council offers safety audits and risk assessment services to various
industries, including food manufacturing, transport and logistics.
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The Council continues to expand its accreditation and
renewal service for OSH practitioners and competent
persons by developing standardized criteria to make
sure that they possess the qualification to perform
specified duties. In addition to the Accredited Safety
Auditor, Accredited Safety Consultant, Accredited
Safety Supervisor (Construction) and Accredited
Occupational Rehabilitation Specialist, we introduced
two more accreditation services during the year to
further improve work-at-height safety. They are the
“Competent Person of Selection, Installation, Use,
Inspection and Testing of Anchor Devices and Cast-
in Anchors for Attachment of Personal Fall Protection
Equipment for Truss-out Bamboo Scaffolds” as well
as the “Competent Person of Testing and Inspection
of Cast-in Anchors for Attachment of Personal Fall
Protection Equipment for Air-conditioner Platforms at
External Walls”.

MORE SUPPORT FOR SMEs

Supporting SMEs which are lack of resources is
important for the enhancement of Hong Kong’s OSH
standards. The Council continues to launch different
sponsorship schemes to support the SMEs. The
Environmental Hygiene Protective Gloves Sponsorship
Scheme introduced during the year supports SMEs
in their purchase of protective gloves that meet
safety standards, so as to alleviate the problem of
practitioners in frequent contact with water, irritative
chemicals and waste with a sharp edge when dealing
with chemical detergents and garbage.

Analysing the fatal accidents of falling from height,
many workers fell from a spot two to three metres

BIPEEBEENBREEL - BARERBIEAEEBERY ROLXBELL
2REEHTERE -

We have a professional team of consultants providing consultancy
services to the public and private sector to encourage the establishment
of a safe and healthy working environment.

EXZk% Z2EXE
Professional Services for
Comprehensive Support

above ground, and many cases involved unsafe ladder
use. To encourage property management companies
and contractors engaged by residents to use suitable
working platforms for above-ground works, the
Council and the Labour Department launched the
Pilot Partnership Scheme on Provision of Light-
duty Working Platform for Property Management
Companies (PMCs) during the year. This scheme
provides appropriate light-duty working platforms to
property management companies for free, so they
can lend the platforms to contractors and workers at
the properties to better protect the employees during
above-ground works.

The Council worked with the Hong Kong New
Generation Cultural Association to set up a special
Award for Outstanding Project in OSH in the “Hong
Kong Youth Science and Technology Innovation
Competition” to encourage secondary students
to design safety equipment to enhance safety
performance through their creativity. The competition
boost their knowledge of OSH and benefit the
students as a result.

A safe and healthy working environment is equally
important to the public sector or private enterprises,
major infrastructures or minor works. With our
expertise and experience, we are committed to
providing comprehensive consultancy services for
different industries through certification and audits.
We aim to collaborate with employers to create a safe
working environment and increase the OSH standards
of Hong Kong in the long run.
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Falling from height is a common
industrial accident. We launched
the Pilot Partnership Scheme on
Light-duty Working Platforms

for the property management
companies to call for attention

to the safety of working at
height.
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Through conducting survey on employees’ healthy diet and exercise,
the Council gained better understanding of the situation to devise
targeted promotion for employers and employees about the importance
of healthy lifestyle.
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Slips, trips and falls in the workplace are common industrial accidents.
Through investigating their causes, the Council would be able to
develop a physical training solution to prevent the accidents.
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Working procedures or conditions of different industries should be adapting to the development over time.
Through researches and surveys, the Council is committed to discover and analyze the latest workplace
safety and health conditions of different industries, and offering timely advices for improving their safety
and health performances towards the goal of “ Zero Accidents”.

COMPLETED RESEARCH PROJECTS

Survey on Physical Activity and Dietary Habits of
Hong Kong Working Population

The Council gathered information from 4,618
respondents from various industries through a survey
to understand their diet and exercise habits as well
as their attitude towards healthy diet and physical
activities. Results indicated that, less than 10% and
20% of the respondents fulfilled the recommendations
by World Health Organization on the intake of fruits
and vegetables and the amount of physical activity
respectively. The research also identified some
individual and work-related factors that had significant
associations with physical activity and dietary habits.
We suggested that workplace should be a priority
setting for health promotion to educate employees the
importance of healthy eating and physical activity.

Survey on the OSH Conditions of Elderly Home
Workers in Hong Kong

This study aims to look at, from multiple perspectives,
the OSH hazards against these workers, their
knowledge, attitude and behaviour regarding OSH,
occupational injuries and well-being by interviewing
the management as well as the frontline staff.
The findings enable the Council to make practical
recommendations regarding the problems faced by
this industry, including manpower shortage, insufficient
training on lifting, or transferring the elderly, lack of
contingency plan for violence at work and inadequate
infection control, for the purpose of improving the
safety and health performance of the industry.

ONGOING MAJOR RESEARCH PROJECTS

Enhancing the Safety Design of Truss-out Working
Platforms for RMAA Works in Hong Kong

To enhance the safety of working at height, this study
investigates the relevant working environment and
requirements through site visits, and devises from an
engineering perspective a new design of the truss-
out working platform meeting international safety
standards. The stability and safety of the platform
are thoroughly tested. The new design will provide
an option of safer working platform for working at

height apart from the traditional bamboo scaffoldings
facilitating safe and efficient working-at-height and
preventing accidents.

Development of a Balance Training Programme to
Prevent Falls in Workplace

According to the data from the Labour Department,
among the 10,000 plus work injuries of all industries
in 2017, slips, trips or falls from the same height were
the most frequent type of accident, posing a serious
threat to work and the economy. After studying and
comparing different fall preventive measures and
their effectiveness, the Council would establish an
effective training programme that aims to mitigate the
chance of slipping and falling by improving physical
balance, muscle strength and power, through strategic
educational and promotional work.

Study on Occupational Stress and Its Social and
Economic Implication in Hong Kong

Work-related stress has a negative impact on
individuals, companies and the society. This study
aims to find out the overall situation of occupational
stress as well as the impact on the society and the
economy by interviewing employees from different
sectors, identifying the economic loss brought by
such stress to both companies and the community.
The results enable the Council to formulate relevant
promotional plans that draw employers’ attention to
this issue while improving employees’ productivity,
efficiency and health.

RIBH LR ERBEEREENBHBLRYZASIELHTE - BEHEEEH
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Conducting research on the quality of elderly services in Hong Kong and
healthcare practitioners’ awareness of OSH can help us to offer specific

recommendations enhancing OSH performance of the industry.

Occupational Safety and Health Council ¢ Annual Report 2018-2019

|

33 '

/



34

EXEHT EHxES
Pursuing Advancement
through Research

BEREARBECRERRECREZZ2EERR
AE

THREMOLE #EMMRESTRENBRLZERAR
—HBRXRI AEARRREXENTIERRR
HRBLTRORBE  ULEBEEIHRE THNHIEE
ETEERN  cMRADRMTHRIROB LR
AR AHEBENFIRE - MABREENZ
E2EH RATENRRERA -

HERNEEMREE

EHEBLEHAODERICHBZREEBTE
BEBAOZIZEHEHE  60RNALEIDATLE
BEINEBATETIFELNBRRZ2MNE — (@
BERRTNEE FAUHABEELEHAEAERE
AT TREREBALTETREINSE
B ARAER TR ER AL S e Ph BB N B - 5
EHEREPHERREBA TN THEBRELNE
s HEMMANBRZEKR  XRIAGED
HELHE LY AUPREEENITIEE -

EEEBAMENEBALHNIFZZREER
8 B A A8 K
REmTRAZRNBEZE2LEEEIRARNE
F-2FEBERNARENEE TRLEENRZ
RERBAMKAFTER - it XBHH

_ o2

TEBA LB TIEBHE# EREEERGE  XGHLEBHE T B
R REBEHEMIINLEZREE

Work stress has social and economic impact. We would study this issue
in-depth so as to enhance the employees’ health at work in the long run.
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Aged employees face various difficulties and challenges at work.
Through surveys, the Council can provide specific suggestions and
suitable support.
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Survey on the OSH Conditions of Lift Repair and
Maintenance Workers in Hong Kong

The OSH performance of lift installation, repair and
maintenance has always been a topic of concern.
Therefore the Council thoroughly examined the
workers’ working conditions, knowledge of OSH
as well as staff training and support provided by
employees. The study enables us to understand the
OSH situation of the industry and develop practical
training courses so that safety awareness and OSH
conditions can be enhanced across the industry.

UPCOMING MAJOR RESEARCH
PROJECTS

Study on Managing the Occupational Safety and
Health Challenges on Ageing Workforce in Hong
Kong

Ageing population in Hong Kong has raised public
concern in recent years. The OSH condition of
capable workers over 60 years old is an issue worth
discussing. In this light, the Council will conduct
questionnaire surveys and focus group discussions
to learn about the change in working ability of these
employees as well as the OSH challenges and
difficulties faced by them. The findings can help us
make recommendations on the working and OSH
conditions of aged employees and facilitate support
for them by planning appropriate promotional and
educational activities.

Measuring the OSH Awareness, Attitude and
knowledge of the Public and Employees

It is the Council’s responsibility to raise public
awareness of occupational safety and health. For
effective education and promotion, understanding
the development and performance of OSH in the
community is of paramount importance. Therefore,
the Council will conduct a follow-up study based
on the findings from the 2008 and 2012 surveys,
including the analysis of the OSH awareness, attitude
and knowledge of local workers and the society at
large. This will provide a guide for our better services
in promotion, education, research, consultation and
other aspects, so as to effectively raise the OSH
standards in Hong Kong.

EXKT EBXTS
Pursuing Advancement
through Research

OSH Best Project Award Research Scholarship

The OSH Best Project Award Research Scholarship
aims to encourage tertiary students to care about
the OSH condition and development in Hong Kong.
This year, the awarded research projects cover the
topics of safety management in construction industry,
the application of individual cooling equipment
against high temperature, the safety of hybrid reality
technology in demolition works, research on the
causes of musculoskeletal disorder and fall injuries of
construction workers, and the potential application of
unmanned aerial vehicles in the prevention of silicosis
etc. The Award received 12 applications on research
topics covering a wide range of industries this year.

In an era of rapid development, it is necessary for the
Council to keep abreast of the latest development of
OSH in different industries, formulating suitable and
practical plans for long term development with the
use of scientific data. The Council will continue its
collaboration with professional bodies and academic
institutions in conducting applied research for
enhancing the OSH performance of Hong Kong.

BITARBECIBREZERINBZRER X REBHETHEBITEMRL
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Good OSH awareness is required for lift maintenance works. The
Council gained more understanding of the industry conditions through
surveys and developed safety training courses accordingly.
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We launched promotional videos with different themes on TV, including “Loving Health-OSH Delivery” and

“Following Safety Procedures for Construction Safety”. o warem
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We reached out to people from all walks of life by disseminating information through websites, Facebook, and YouTube channels.
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Sharing Knowledge through Better

Use of Technology

As information technology develops rapidly in Hong Kong, we are committed to ensuring that information
can be transmitted in a fast and effective manner. We promote safety and health message to employees,
employers and general public through extensive channels.

BARRIER-FREE WEBSITE FOR ALL

Access to the latest information from the Internet is
an indispensable part of our lives today. The Council
strives to improve and continues to optimise the
website interface and functions. During the year, the
Council won the Silver Award of the Web Accessibility
Recognition Scheme. By adopting an access-oriented
design, we make our website easier to search and
browse, meeting the needs of different people in
our society. At the same time, we continued to
distribute information on such platforms as Facebook,
Instagram, YouTube and OSH app, and upload our
event details, promotion leaflets, animations and
videos so that the general public can access the
updates anytime, anywhere. Interaction with the public
is also important. Through various online channels, we
strengthen mutual communication and interaction.

BEN A REERZRAEFRSIELZTREE  HHEAEEME -
Atrtistes disseminating OSH information in a light-hearted way attracting
more views and enhancing the effectiveness of promotion.

SHORT FILMS MAKE OUR MESSAGE
INTERESTING

The production of promotional online videos is a
key part of our campaign. It proves to be effective in
engaging celebrities in shooting. During the year, the
Council invited artiste Chapman To to take part in the
production of a construction safety promotional video,
“Fear of Death”. It was uploaded to YouTube to attract
more viewers. We also continued to commission the
Television Broadcasts Limited to produce a series of
short episodes on occupational health, construction
safety as well as the “OSH Master Chef Challenge” on
catering safety. OSH ambassador Chef Chan Kwok
Keung and artiste successfully conveyed the message
of work safety in a light-hearted manner.
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Safety at work
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MTR and bus body remain one of our major promotional platforms.

BEFYBLRLREE  BIZBLEETIHSAEHRREGER L
BEFTARA BRETIFZ 2 RZEE -

The OSH of the construction industry is particularly important. We
encouraged companies to put up posters and distribute leaflets to
remind frontline workers about work safety and health.

D BB R B S RATHI B Z (27
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We produced promotional materials in different languages providing the
ethnic minorities with the latest OSH messages.
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REACHING PEOPLE FROM ALL WALKS
OF LIFE THROUGH VARIOUS CHANNELS

While it is important to promote OSH on the Internet
and mobile devices, traditional mass media platforms
still play a vital role. Books, leaflets, periodicals and
posters published by the Council continue to be well
received by companies and communities. We update
relevant content from time to time to ensure the latest
information is delivered. Other forms of media, such
as bus bodies, MTR light box, cinema advertising,
newspapers, radio and television, also help us to
achieve good promotion results. During the year, we
continued to release promotion videos on TV, covering
key OSH messages concerning working at height,
dismantling truss-out bamboo scaffolds, -electrical
work and catering safety.

STRENGTHENING PROMOTION
CAMPAIGN FOR ETHNIC MINORITIES

The Council has always been concerned about the
occupational safety of ethnic minorities and foreign
domestic workers in Hong Kong, conveying OSH
messages to this group of people through various
channels. In addition to producing publications,
brochures, leaflets and materials in different
languages, we joined hands with RTHK Radio 2 to
produce a special radio programme to help foreign
domestic workers know more about occupational
safety.

Moreover, the OSH Information Centre located in
Tsing Yi OSH Academy houses more than 7,000
books, over 20 types of magazines, periodicals and
newsletters related to OSH, enabling students and
public to obtain information from a wide range of
sources.

As our society progresses, demand for OSH services
are on the rise. Employers, employees and people
from all walks of life should keep themselves updated
on the OSH development. At the same time, we are
keen to learn about public perceptions on relevant
issues, so that through extensive promotional and

HEIFERE HEHA

Sharing Knowledge through Better

Use of Technology

communication channels, we would convey OSH
information to the public effectively to create a safe
community with zero accidents in the long run.

BEDEENEBIHITIELS  EBERTREES
1P It & R Al

Safety awareness of the foreign domestic helpers have been improved
through various activities, radio programmes and safety talks.

BEAERAELUEH

EthEmEs
7 =29Eam g

;mum;g

s Ui % sy
g;@‘

BHEHLHRTEAY - IF - BHRREBEREELERBETHATIE
B - i TEERZ@HE -

We regularly produce publications, booklets, posters and leaflets which
can be shown at construction sites and workplaces to disseminate OSH
messages to employees.
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Local and overseas experts shared the latest OSH development and
technology at the 26" Quadripartite Conference on OSH.
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Our delegation visited large construction sites in Shanghai and Suzhou to learn about their safety management development.
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Eyeing the World and Thinking New

Eyeing the world and benchmarking on overseas best practices is one of the effective ways to enhance
the workplace safety and health standards in Hong Kong. Through overseas study visits, conferences,
forums and site visits, we would be able to examine first hand the OSH development in other parts of the
world. This exchange and sharing of information is mutual and would bring the OSH development in Hong

Kong in line with the international development.

SITE VISITS AND OVERSEAS
EXPERIENCES

Study Tour to Shanghai and Suzhou on Safety

of Construction Industry and Environmental
Protection Projects

The Council visited Shanghai and Suzhou with
the Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety
and Health Associations and the Safety Specialist
Committee of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
to learn about the implementation of safety
management and technological development at
large construction sites. The delegation also went to
mainland China’s largest research centre for fire and
disaster prevention to get a better understanding of its
latest preventive technology. This enabled the team to
learn from mainland’s occupational safety technologies
and enhance the effectiveness of safety management
in Hong Kong.

Study Tour to Korea on Innovative OSH

Technologies for Construction Industry

Korea is experienced in applying innovative
technologies to improve the safety performance of
large-scale infrastructure projects. Therefore, the
Council organised a study four jointly with the Korea
Occupational Safety and Health Agency. Hong Kong

|
x|
$

ABBEERAN L SBHBEABEE TERE REF 0 - TEAEFILTF GBI R R AEE B ERIIZHAR -

practitioners were able to examine the applications of
preventive measures and other occupational safety
issues in large-scale projects such as road and bridge
infrastructure. The delegation also visited Korea’'s
safety and health training centre for the construction
industry and learnt more about the latest technologies
being used.

PROMOTING OSH DEVELOPMENT
THROUGH EXCHANGE

At the 26" Quadripartite Conference on OSH, held
in Hong Kong, the Council representatives shared
experience in implementing the Hong Kong Safety
and Health Certification Scheme and Star Enterprise
Schemes while releasing the findings from the OSH
surveys for electrical workers and mobile crane
operators. At the Asia Pacific Occupational Safety and
Health Organisation annual conference held in Hong
Kong in December of the same year, representatives
of the Council shared their experience in promotion,
training and other relevant aspects. OSH expects
from different parts of the world have also visited the
OSH Immersive Experience Hall at the Tsing Yi OSH
Academy providing good feedbacks.

The Council and industry practitioners visited large infrastructure projects and training centres in Korea to learn how to use innovative technology for

better training results.

Occupational Safety and Health Council ¢ Annual Report 2018-2019 J 41 L
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Eyeing the World and Thinking New
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Experts from overseas discussed topics such as the symptoms
of burn out and mental health at work at the Occupational Health
Conference.

A BEBSEEMFANE

WAL BERR o —F— /UEE R —JURER

BERBERLZHEZREGE  BEXHUIEET BB LR RR
The Council participated in seminars and thematic forums, and arranged expert visits to exchange ideas and promote OSH development in Hong Kong
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The Council shared experiences on OSH implementation in Hong Kong
at the 33rd Asia Pacific Occupational Safety and Health Organization
Annual Conference.
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Technological advances facilitate the implementation
of effective OSH measures and improve performance.
Through exchange and sharing with experts from
the mainland and other areas, the Council is with the
latest OSH trends, drawing on the experiences from
other parts of the world. At the Occupational Health
Conference held in Hong Kong, we invited overseas
and local experts to analyse and discuss psychological
health at workplaces, and look into the symptoms of
burn out and strategies to prevent stress. Participants
got the opportunity to practise mindfulness during
the conference, and check out different indicators on
their health conditions. Furthermore, at the Seminar on
Chemical Safety 2019, experts talked about the safety
control of hazardous chemicals and exchanged their
insights for effective implementation.

MRBIE RRB&E

Eyeing the World and Thinking New

During the year, we participated in the 9" China
International Forum on Work Safety at Hangzhou
and the 20" China Hi-Tech Fair in Shenzhen, where
we exchanged with local counterparts on OSH
education and training. Representatives of the Council
were invited to share on our work at the Singapore
Workplace Safety and Health Conference 2018. Visits
were then arranged to local hospitals and clinics to
benchmark on their experience of injured workers
returning to work.

In an era of change, the Council capitalized on the
opportunity of exploring new OSH development
with the professionals and experts at international
conferences, seminars or site visits. The experience
gained are inspirational and beneficial to our own
strategic planning and development in OSH.

\)

BEBRE [ DA MEBFELZ2RELLBFHNE | #5ZBLRISHNREEIER YSBLGRITERN [BERE | BLEBEA
During the Asia Pacific Occupational Safety and Health Organization Annual Conference, experts shared their experiences in OSH training and

promotion and visited our new OSH Immersive Experience Hall.
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Overseas experts visited the OSH Academy in Tsing Yi to share their training experiences.

Occupational Safety and Health Council ¢ Annual Report 2018-2019 J 43



oE B 2B e b
ﬂﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂ»«ig@ .w




i 45
Appendices

MEHRE
Financial Statements 46

2 BEZ2RRENERE
Membership of the Occupational Safety and 68
Health Council

L — bz
3 BZRERHFER 70

Council Meeting Attendance

4 BEZ2RERASE
Organisation Chart of the Occupational Safety 72
and Health Council

Em = dE= oo
5 ESZESZERE 76

Membership of the Functional Committees
TER2RRBRZEESZERE

Membership of the Industry-based 82
Safety & Health Committees

7 SHEIRRBRATER ST
Statistics Profile of Participants Attending 1 00
Training Courses

8 HRRERBERE
Summary of Training Programmes and 1 04
Seminars



By sk 1 - BF AR &

Appendix 1: Financial Statements T MM

1 3L 4% BUAD 3R S
BBELZZRERSHKE
(RB(BERZZRERMRAI DKL)

=R

AAZEED (A TEE[RM]) B TR EZBE
Z2RER(TBERDINERESOEESE
67 BB HmE WM BMEBIENR20194F
SASITAMUBURNE  BEZBILEFEN
KZHER  BARBBREDERRBSRE
® URFEGFHBERMERE MK EEE -

BHMRE ZEHMBERECREBEEE G
Ag((EEGHMAE ) BHEOE BN B R
ERAEFTARTFHREBL BN 2019F 3
AS1HMBEMRARBEEZA IEFENT
FRAMASRE  VYEERRB(BRELZEZRERR
PV EBAPIEI98E) ZERE -

ERNER

BMERBEEGMASHMBHEBER
HR([BBETER ] RABEL 2 RERK
B (BAEGIE 398 F ) EITEZIAIE ° B
RZELETHEERERMOBSE A [ZEED
MERVBRERBEZENEET] PIEE—FH
oo REBEFBGHAMASN [BXSFMER
STRII(T=FRID) - BMBIRBLR  WEE
BTFRIETEMBEEER - HMIEE - FKM
FIESHEREREEREREZ AR MO
BERIBMHEAR -

46 ‘ WL BMERR o —F— UEE R —JURER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY
AND HEALTH COUNCIL

(ESTABLISHED UNDER THE OCCUPATIONAL
SAFETY AND HEALTH COUNCIL ORDINANCE)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Occupational Safety
and Health Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 50 to 67, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
and the statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes
in capital and reserves, and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2019 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Council Ordinance (CAP 398).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA and the Occupational Safety
and Health Council Ordinance (CAP 398). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Council in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Occupational
Safety and Health Council Ordinance (CAP 398),

internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable

and for such

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for
assessing the ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council either intends to liquidate

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Council is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting

process. The audit committee assists the Council in discharging its

responsibilities in this regard.

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the internal control.
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o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the Council.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to continue

as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tam Kwok Yiu

Practising Certificate Number P02575

Hong Kong, 13 June 2019
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WX EE R STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
BZE2019F3H31 HIFFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
'ON Income
BRI Levy income 122,997,506 120,750,492
EEHUA Sponsorship 2,030,000 2,110,000
FEUA Interest income 6,222,775 3,732,896
FBRERFEAK AU 2] Recovery from training courses 18,918,713 20,334,228
EERI AR URA Consultancy service fee 10,170,598 8,106,784
EIE B A Collaborative project income 9,323,728 9,434,312
E AU Other income 457,408 561,034
WA . Totalincome 170,120,728 . 165,029,746 __
S Expenditure
RS Operational expenditure (136,212,107) (138,730,345)
WIEER Collaborative project expenditure (9,323,728) (9,434,312)
RIS T Non-recurrent expenditure (4,100,795) (2,195,460)
mxw . Totalexpenditwe . (149636630 _ _ (150,360,117)
AEERBRE2ERA Surplus and total comprehensive
income for the year 20,484,098 14,669,629
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Bt #& R OR R STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R2019F3 31 H AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
MIsE 2019 2018
Note it B
HK$ HK$
ERBEE Non-current assets
LIEYS G Property and equipment 8 51,433,570 57,844,659
b Deposits 409,832 409,832
e e e e e OB 51,843,402 58,254,491
REEE Current assets
JE K BR R N Eo b E U FA Accounts and other receivables 9 9,661,807 3,537,003
TEHITER Fixed deposits 340,880,478 313,071,517
Re MIRTT4E 8% Cash and bank balances 12,141,068 8,302,701
e e 362,683,353 324,911,221
RBAE Current liabilities
JEBR R R FERTE A Accounts payable and accruals 24,678,364 22,869,705
TEULER X Receipts-in-advance 29,969,030 22,170,134
BHEE Contract liabilities 10 932,520 -
BHBE T L miNE % Provision for gratuities 740,048 403,178
e e e e e OB 56319962 45,443,017
hBmAERE | Netcurrentassets 306,363,391 279,468,204
FEE Net assets 358,206,793 337,722,695
EXRFHE Reserve funds
BRI Accumulated surplus 11 271,747,650 241,690,512
e N Capital funds 11 51,433,570 57,844,659
BHREE Development fund 11 586,409 3,300,000
ES AL Building maintenance fund 11 34,939,164 34,887,524
358,206,793 337,722,695

BB RN2019F6 S 13 HER LT ABBL

BER YR TIRKREE

RESEL  KFEL
Eia

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Council on 13 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Alan Chan Hoi-shou, JP

Chairman
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HERER STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BZE2019F3H31 HIFFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
REEFH2HEESRE Operating activities
REERR Surplus for the year 20,484,098 14,669,629
PR Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 10,435,643 8,683,713
FBUTA Interest income (6,222,775) (3,732,896)
BELSSEBAI RS Surplus before working capital changes 24,696,966 19,620,446
(), B U ER R (Increase)/decrease in accounts and
N E Ab FEUGRIA other receivables (3,993,035) 90,061
NN R R ERHE A Increase in accounts payable and accruals 1,808,659 1,343,717
1 HNTEBR TR Increase in receipts-in-advance 7,798,896 1,205,022
wmasasE Increase in contract liabilities 932,520 -
BINAEH B THIMMEXE®E  Increase in provision for gratuities 336,870 323,730
HEEBZREMARE _ Netcash generated from operations 31,580,876 .. 22,582,976 __
RETHZRERE Investing activities
EEMERBBE AR Purchase of property and equipment (4,024,554) (1,057,058)
B hnE HFER Increase in fixed deposits (27,808,961) (29,415,989)
B R S UA Interest income received 4,091,006 2,742,184
RETBZREREFE Net cash used in investing activities (27,742,509) (27,730,863)
HeRREEHEER Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
i, (R ) B8 cash equivalents 3,838,367 (5,147,887)
FYRLRRLEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,302,701 13,450,588
FRESRRESEEHER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12,141,068 8,302,701
ReERFEESEEEEZ Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
ERRDT at end of year:
e RIRI T4 R Cash and bank balances 12,141,068 8,302,701

52 | WL BMERR o —F— UEE R —JURER
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND

RESERVES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

“aps BAfE RRGE  DEEBHE ok
Building
Accumulated Capital  Development  maintenance
surplus funds fund fund Total
B it ik B ik
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Ro017E4 18 Balance at 1 April 2017 222,581,752 65,471,314 - 35,000,000 323,063,066
BANERERBRE Transfer to building maintenance fund on
FEe provision of building maintenance reserve (7,100,000) - - 7,100,000 -
EEMEEERENEY  Transfer from buiding maintenance fund to
MEEBR match expenditure on building maintenance 7,212,476 - - (7,212,476) -
BIERREREER Transfer to capital funds for additions of
VEP G property and equipment (1,057,058) 1,057,058 - - -
BEAANGRENWEHEE  Transfer from capital funds to match
FEEBR depreciation charge for the year 8,683,713 (8,683,713) - - -
BEBREE Transfer to development fund (3,300,000) - 3,300,000 - -
FEZARARE Total comprehensive income for the year 14,669,629 - - - 14,669,629
R2018F3A31AK Balance at 31 March 2018
2018F4A1H and 1 April 2018 241,690,512 57,844,659 3,300,000 34,887,524 337,722,695
EANEEERFERE Transfer to building maintenance fund on
FEe provision of building maintenance reserve (51,640) - - 51,640 -
BREXRER(ERE Transfer to capital funds for additions of
MERF property and equipment (660,963) 4,024,554 (3,363,591) - -
BRARGENEYFE  Transfer from capital funds to match
HEER depreciation charge for the year 10,435,643 (10,435,649) - - -
BEERGERE Transfer to development fund (650,000) - 650,000 - -
FEPANAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,484,098 - - - 20,484,098
R2019F3A31H Balance at 31 March 2019 271,247,650 51,433,570 586,409 34,939,164 358,206,793
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CORPORATE STATUS

The Council is established under the Occupational Safety and
Health Council Ordinance (CAP 398) in 1988. The registered
office and place of operation is situated at 19th Floor, China
United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The purposes of the Council are (a) to foster greater awareness
among the community; (b) to promote the application of
modern technology; (c) to promote education and training; (d) to
disseminate technical knowledge; (e) to develop strategies and
formulate programmes; (f) to provide consultancy services; and
(g) to encourage and facilitate co-operation and communication
between the Government, employers, employees and relevant
professional and academic bodies, in furtherance of the
encouragement and promotion of higher standards of safety and
health for people at work.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the requirements of the
Occupational Safety and Health Council Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”).

(o) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis.

() Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in the Council’s
functional currency, Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective 1 April
2018
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers have been summarised below.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

From 1 April 2018, the Council has adopted HKFRS 9
retrospectively without restating comparative information.

Reclassification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 at 1
April 2018 led to changes in accounting policies (Note 4(f)).
As at 1 April 2018, the Council’s trade receivable, other
receivables, fixed deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were reclassified from the original classification of “loans
and receivables” under HKAS 39 to the new classification
of “financial assets at amortised cost” under HKFRS 9. As
at 1 April 2018, the Council considered that there is no
material difference between the previous carrying amounts
and that under the new classification.

Adopting the “expected credit loss” model of impairment
of financial assets to replace the “impaired loss” model
also led to changes in accounting policies (Note 4(f)).

Occupational Safety and Health Council ¢ Annual Report 2018-2019
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EYNE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

3.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective 1 April
2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations, application of
principal versus agent, licenses of intellectual property, and
transition requirements.

Since 1 April 2018, the Council has adopted the following
accounting policies on revenue recognition:

° Recovery from training courses and service fee
income is recognised over time when the related
services are provided

o Interest income is recognised on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method
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Appendix 1: Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

3.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective 1 April
2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (continued)

The Council adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the cumulative
impact of the adoption, if any, wil be recognised
in accumulated surplus as of 1 April 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated. Adopting HKFRS 15 has
no significant impact on the Council’s financial statements
on transition except that the advance from customers
recognised in relation to the training courses were
reclassified from receipt in advance to contract liabilities.
As a result, as at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities were
increased by HKD1,014,813 while receipt in advance were
decreased by HKD1,014,813.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Council’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Council.
HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material®

! Effective for annual periods, beginning on or after 1
January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods, beginning on or after 1
January 2020

The Council is continuing to assess the implications of the
adoption of these standards.

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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‘BEYNE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of property and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to acquisition of
the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Council
and the cost of them can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to the
statement of income and expenditure during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 2%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 33%
Leasehold improvements 11%
Motor vehicle 33%
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods

and useful lives are reviewed annually, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
the statement of income and expenditure.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

U]

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged as
expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives received are recognised as an integrated
part of the rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Employee benefits

Staff leave entitlements at the end of the reporting
period are taken up as liabilities according to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits”.

Accounts and other payables
Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently carried at amortised cost.

Contract liabilities

The contract liability represents the Council’s obligation to
provide service to a customer for which the Council has
received consideration from the customer.

Accounts and other receivables
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost
less allowance for expected credit losses. The Council
measured the loss allowance for its accounts and other
receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised

at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowances for impairment losses.

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(¢)]

(h)

@)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Recognition of income
Levy is recognised as income when it becomes payable to
the Council.

Sponsorship income is recognised to match the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Recovery from training courses and service fee income
are recognised over time when the related services are
provided.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Council has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that can
be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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B R R M EE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BEZ20194F 3 H31 HiIFF)ZE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
5. #MWEA 5. LEVY INCOME
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
Bk E Levies received from
— BT - Government 5,922,504 5,874,334
—EEmERRER — Employees’ Compensation Insurance Levies
BB Management Board 117,075,002 114,876,158
122,997,506 120,750,492

& B 5 B R B BRG] 5 £ 1RET
B REREMERRBREERR
BEERERNLENREEER
FETBLR -

BZBREZE2019F3A31 Bt
FE EoREZ2EEBHERBRE
RERBERFELILLEE20/58
(20184 € : 20/58) °

BEEHERBREREAEREEW
EREEREBNS8% (2018 :
5.8%) o

(@ In accordance with Section 7 of the Employees’
Compensation Insurance Levies Ordinance, the
Employees’ Compensation Insurance Levies Management
Board is to distribute a proportion of its net resources to
the Occupational Safety and Health Council on a quarterly
basis.

The proportion of the net resources of the Employees’
Compensation Insurance Levies Management Board to be
distributed to the Occupational Safety and Health Council
for the year ended 31 March 2019 was fixed at 20/58
(2018: 20/58).

(o)  The Employees’ Compensation Insurance Levy payable
on each premium payable by an insured in respect of any
insurance policy issued by an insurer was prescribed at
5.8% (2018: 5.8%) on the said premium.
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B NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EZ 20194331 HIFF/E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
6. RKEMXZH 6. OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
THEA Administrative expenses 3,979,756 3,906,225
ZERD & Auditor’s remuneration 135,400 135,000
e Depreciation 10,435,644 8,683,713
= Information 1,674,355 2,440,033
FENEEERE Legal and professional fees 75,735 83,650
AR RS KAt &l Consultancy services and programs 4,919,809 6,499,167
NS LR Overseas conferences and seminars 206,442 323,708
NS Public relations affairs 18,906 11,677
EHIEE Publicity programs 31,351,306 32,105,712
TR Research grants 1,846,628 452,219
BT FE Staff salaries and related costs 58,772,406 54,769,826
Y465 Training and education 22,795,720 22,106,939
YEEEER Building maintenance = 7,212,476
136,212,107 138,730,345
7. FEREMIH 7. NON-RECURRENT EXPENDITURE
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BEFENRIETTEXE  Construction and Designated Industries Injured
EEERTIELER S Employees Return-to-work Pilot Scheme 466,069 982,063
AEVEFE TR LR  OSH Campaign for Major Infrastructure Projects 556,561 294,800
BB R L EZ IT Security Audit 147,000 -
TETHSHEEEDY Vision Zero Campaign 317,791 -
TR = ERT S Prevention of Heat Stroke Promotional Campaign 1,600,000 -
BB ENHRE Guangdong, HK & Macau Safety Quiz Competition — 47 545
BLEERLE OSH Star Enterprise — Recycling Campaign
— Bl SR on OSH
RIS EETE Pilot Scheme 769,374 871,052
[FOE@ERITIEM]  Joyful@Healthy Workplace Promotional Campaign
HETE 244,000 -
4,100,795 2,195,460
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

8. WMXR®ZE 8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Tk HER BAZE HEWE
BED %E &M %15 E§ ok
Leasehold Furniture
land and and Office Leasehold Motor
buildings fixtures equipment improvements vehicle Total
R Bk B B ki B
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
7% Cost
11/4/2018 At 1 April 2018 71,024,144 2,535,386 4,257,374 54,741,321 583,257 133,141,482
NE Additions - 171,280 320,840 3,532,434 - 4,024,554
R8Ve019  AtSTMarch2019 71024144 2706666 4578214 58273755 . 583,257 137,166,036 _
2ENE Accumulated depreciation
#1/4/2018 At 1 April 2018 27,125,435 1,854,107 3,749,030 41,984,994 583,257 75,296,823
e Depreciation 1,420,483 427861 442,919 8,144,380 - 10,435,643
R812019 ASTMarch2019 28545018 2281968 4191049 50129374 . 583,257 85732466
BA Cost
A 1/4/2017 At 1 April 2017 71,024,144 2,247,771 3,740,260 54,488,992 583,257 132,084,424
AE Additions - 287,615 517,114 252,329 - 1,057,058
RSVs018  ASTMarch2018 71024144 2536386 4267374 s4Tals 583267 | 133,141,482
2BNE Accumulated depreciation
#1/4/2017 At 1 April 2017 25,704,952 1,448,958 3,269,112 35,606,831 583,257 66,613,110
il Depreciation 1,420,483 405,149 479,018 6,378,163 - 8,683,713
ROUS018  ASIMach2018 27005435 1SSAIOT 79000 MgBAS  SE5T  T52968%
BEFE Carrying amount
7.31/3/2019 At 31 March 2019 42,478,226 424,698 386,265 8,144,381 - 51,433,570
7.31/3/2018 At 31 March 2018 43,898,709 681,279 508,344 12,756,327 - 57,844,659
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M mRME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BZ2019F3H31 HiIFFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
8. WMERRME(E) 8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
(@) T TIIUEBHEHAFAEEEME (@)  Theland is held in Hong Kong on long-term leases.
f& e
(b) THREFEWIIRBIEBRLRZE (o)  The land and buildings are used as head office and training
WERRBTEINRP DO - EE centre of the Council. The properties are situated at 18/
MR BALASEBE28RERE F and 19/F, China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North
FL18 KR 1948 © Point, Hong Kong.
(c) BARERLTHNEEY TS (©)  As the land and buildings held for own use cannot be
WE D TR EEYKO KRB allocated reliably between the land and building elements
T H K 5 RS W B R R IR & E and it is clear that only the land element is operating
HEMFZEE BEAHEELSIEA lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and
MEMEMBREESSFHELNSE accounted for under HKAS 16 in accordance with HKAS
17 AB B G ERE 1658 A 17.
9. EWIRMKH i EWKRKIE 9. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
JEURBR TR Accounts receivable 4,737,958 1,374,484
E W R E R ige Other receivables and deposits 4,179,181 2,047,413
B FRIE Prepayments 744,668 115,106
9,661,807 3,537,003
10. EHEE 10. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2019 2018
pited peitecd
HK$ HK$
EFIARER AR PTEE A 1) Contract liabilities arising from training courses
SHEE 932,520 -
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HFE2019F 331 HiFF/E

11. EXRHE
(a) BEHERBH:

(2)

(3)

(4)

ke RELEREH
BRH REXEERT L&
FrEctz B -

EXfEE BAWRBREYCE
ExMERZE- A
THERELELR
BURHERFTER
RRERLENER
Rmls/ (BR) -

ERER BERUBRRBUR
ERERERTL -

NEEERE NXEERBRAT
BRENLABATNE
ERBH ML NE
hEHERBLER
BHARHARE -

ffs&1 : B HRE

Funds

Accumulated surplus

Capital funds

Development fund

Building maintenance
fund

Appendix 1: Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
The following describes the nature and purposes of
reserve funds:

Nature and purpose of funds

Cumulative surplus recognised
in statement of income and
expenditure.

Capital funds represent funds used
by the Council for the purchase
of property and equipment.
Capital funds are released to
the accumulated surplus in line
with the related depreciation and
gain/(loss) on disposal charged
to the statement of income and
expenditure.

Fund set aside for setting up
Immersive Type Virtual Reality
System for OSH Training

Building maintenance fund
represent funds used by the
Council for the refurbishment
of the public area of leasehold
buildings. The funds will be released
to the accumulated surplus with
the related expenditure charged
to the statement of income and
expenditure.
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Appendix 1: Financial Statements

oY

B 7 3% 3} MY & NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HZ2019F 331 HiIFF/EF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
11. EXRRE (&) 11. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) EXERE (b) Capital management
BZBNERBERIBEIRRTER Capital of the Council comprises accumulated
hrBERG BARAGEE TR surplus, capital funds, development fund and buildings
BRI EEERHE - maintenance fund as shown in the statement of financial

position.
BZREEBEEANTEEEZRR The Council’s primary objectives when managing capital
[ERZRFELLENE A RE are to safeguard the Council’s ability to continue as a
REBZENRARRKIAEEHE going concern and to enable the Council to meet its
BiE o liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.
BLTREBRBRLTREANEAREER The Council’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
TEHEHLEEBRLTREHER managed with due regard to the capital management
@ o practices of the Council.
12, &I 12. COMMITMENTS
EERERE Operating lease commitments

R2019F3A31H @ B BRETAIHE
HraBEHEMNRRES [ 2&EM

At 31 March 2019, the Council had commitments for future

minimum lease under non-cancellable operating leases in

E@FENT - respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
F1FN Within one year 12 12
FE2ESFNA In the second to fifth years inclusive 1 13
13 25
13. B 13. TAXATION
BB EOIESSK ML RERE—1 The Council is not liable to Hong Kong profits tax by virtue of
TIE - Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
14. EEKREBRER 14. STAFF LEAVE ENTITLEMENTS

RENERLEFERIRETIERAER
HR BB A E 5 ,233,128(2018 : /&
#4,850,140) °
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Appendix 1: Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Council is exposed to various financial risks which are
discussed below:

(@) Interest rate risk
The Council’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the bank balances and
fixed deposits.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Council’s bank balances and fixed deposits at

Bt - the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
RITHER Bank deposits 343,092,056 316,221,248
BERA= Effective annual interest rate 1.81%-2.90% 0.85%-1.76%

(i) HEEEST

H20194F 3 A 31 EI = 7
A m b2 2018
100) fEl = 2f ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ“
RETE - ﬁ'lﬂﬁtﬁ%ﬂﬁ$¢
ERGRERGEENH
38 501,301 (2018 :
B 1,436,021) °

LL‘@ZWF DT TR ER ) &

""""" EYNEERRL . WEM
K% B FERNEE RO RT
TER = FIXE 5D 25 {8
EHZREEBHMNERE
ET-—BFEHAER LHHE
WE A TR BE & B RO RT AR -

EEEE

MR2019F 3 318 @ EWEE4
R 74% (2018 : 37%) K AR
BEANEF AT BBFEM
WRZRTEE—ENEERR -

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2018: 100) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the Council’s surplus for
the year and accumulated surplus by HK$501,301
(2018: HK$1,436,021).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for bank deposits in existence at that date. The
25 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end
of next reporting period.

(b) Credit risk
At the end of reporting period, the Council has some
concentration of credit risk as 74% (2018: 37%) of total
accounts receivable was due from the Council’s largest
customer (Hong Kong government department).
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CHAIRMAN
Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP

VICE-CHAIRMAN
Mr CHAN Wing-on

&2 BEZERERAKERE

Appendix 2: Membership of the

Occupational Safety and Health Council

MEMBERS
Mr Allen CHENG Siu-kai

Ms CHIANG Lai-ling

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Ir Helen KWAN Po-jen

Dr LAM Chor-yin

Ir Alex LEUNG Wai-hung

Mr LO Tai-chi

Dr David MONG Tak-yeung

Ms NG Wai-yee, MH, JP

Ms SIU Sin-man

Professor Grace SZETO Pui-yuk

Mr Ilvan TAM Kwok-wing

Mr TSUI Wai-tim

Ms Wendy YUEN Miu-ling

Mr Thomas HUI Hoi-hon
Chief Assistant Secretary (Works)
Development Bureau

Mr Carlson CHAN Ka-shun, JP
Commissioner for Labour

Dr To Kwong-yuk
Chief Chemist (Forensic Science Div)
Government Laboratory (from 22 August 2018)

Dr KWOK Fu-chiu
Assistant Government Chemist (Forensic Science Div)

Government Laboratory (up to 21 August 2018)
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TREJBEHMEZEREE2018-19FENBLTRASERLER .

BZRAEEE

BZRERE

PREEEL - APt (FRF) 4/4
PRk R4 (BIERE) 4/4
BAERE 4/4
BEELt 4/4
[ERE L - REBE - KF#HL 3/4
FER TIZAD 4/4
MEEEAL 3/3
RETETIZAD 3/4
BREFRE 3/3
SiEGiEt 1/4
REERL  KEBHE - KAFHtL 4/4
Ll p s 3/4
AIfEN E 2 2/4
BRI AE 3/4
REREE 3/4
RYRT L 3/4
BRBEENER(TH) 4/4
BTEBERIEREK 4/4
B sRe s & 4/4

* R2018E8 A2 HREERLBKE
2018-19F ERBELRKXEFHHNFEEXAE85% °
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w E r@‘ Appendix 3: Council Meeting Attendance

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SETS OUT THE ATTENDANCE OF COUNCIL MEMBERS AT
COUNCIL MEETINGS IN 2018-19:

Council Meeting

Council Members

Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP (Chairman) 4/4
Mr CHAN Wing-on (Vice-Chairman) 4/4
Mr Allen CHENG Siu-kai 4/4
Ms CHIANG Lai-ling 4/4
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP 3/4
Ir Helen KWAN Po-jen 4/4
Dr LAM Chor-yin* 3/3
Ir Alex LEUNG Wai-hung 3/4
Mr LO Tai-chi* 3/3
Dr David MONG Tak-yeung 1/4
Ms NG Wai-yee, MH, JP 4/4
Ms SIU Sin-man 3/4
Professor Grace SZETO Pui-yuk 2/4
Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing 3/4
Mr TSUI Wai-tim 3/4
Ms Wendy YUEN Miu-ling 3/4
Chief Assistant Secretary (Works), Development Bureau 4/4
Commissioner for Labour or his representative 4/4
Government Chemist or his representative 4/4

* As Council Member from 22 August 2018

The average attendance rate of Council Members in 2018-19 is 85%.
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Occupational Safety and Health Council

TYeE

Occupational Safety and Health Council

T ——
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: m

T

Finance & Education &

; Audit . o Publicity
SSle Committee Administration Training Committee
Committee Committee
Administration P : Chemical Occupational Safe
rofessional p .
& Services Research Safety & Health Health Community
Publicity Division Committee Advisory Advisory Advisory
Division Committee Committee Committee
OSH Hong Kon OSH Star Catering OSH Star Enterprise - Construction and
Enhancement ORalel s Safety & H‘?a%th ENerprise RMAA - Safety & Health ¢ Reayding Industry ?ﬂ%ﬁ%gﬁgﬁ?
Screening Certification Safety Acreditation . Safety Enhancement = g s
Scheme for SME ; . Seh : Steering Pilot Scheme eturn-to-work Pilot
; Committee Scheme Steering cheme Steering ; ; - Scheme Steering
Committee Committee Committee Committee Steering Committee Committee
. Electrical &
CacSaas Construction Mechanical Health Care Imp
Hospitality Industry Trade & Repair Services & Wholesale
Services of Vehidles Retail Trade
, Logistics & Property Sedentar
Information Fgreight Manufacturing =~ Management, & !
and T ¢ Indust Environmental Professional
Communication ranspor ndustry Hygiene and rofessiona
Industry Reqycling Services Services
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BEREES
EEHE

EEZEESZERE
Y

AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP

RESEBL  KFEL(2E)

Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP (Chairman)

FEELEE  REBEBE - KFHEL

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

XEBiEL

é\’i

Dr David MONG Tak-yeung

RYEREL L

Ms Wendy YUEN Miu-ling

RKBRE - KF#L

Mr Jeff LEUNG Wing-yan, JP

MERTRZEES® FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
COMMITTEE

ZEEE MEMBERSHIP

B ) Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing (Chairman)

BEZLL Ms CHIANG Lai-ling

MEEE Dr LAM Chor-yin

REEZL  BEHE - AFHt Ms NG Wai-yee, MH, JP

Mt IBIE L Dr TO Kwong-yuk

B 58 3 20 + Ms Queenie TANG Yuen-shan

BLREB=E(EAZE)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

HERIREES
ZERE

EDUCATION AND TRAINING COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP

RESEL  KF@L(£E)

Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP (Chairman)

B ELEE  £EBE - KFatL Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP
(&1 TIZAD Ir Alex LEUNG Wai-hung
HERNEE Mr TSUI Wai-tim

RN EE (20185 4 16 HAR)

Mr CHEUNG Ping-kwong (from 16 April 2018)

SEEL LT (E2018F 4158 1)

Ms NG Chor-mei, Mimi (up to 15 April 2018)

BzReB=E(EAZE)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)
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EEZEE PUBLICITY COMMITTEE

ZERE MEMBERSHIP

BRok &Sk (F /) Mr CHAN Wing-on (Chairman)
AELEE  KEHE - KF@EL Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

BAERE Mr LO Tai-chi

FREM L Mr Thomas HUI Hoi-hon

20 7% B % A Mr KWOK Wang-hing

hfELRE  KREBHE

Mr Lawrence NG San-wa, MH

BIEXE L - TIZAD

Ir Dr Sammy WAN Kin-man

RF B Dr LEUNG Chi-chiu
RREFEHE Mr NG Ka-wing

e IB kA& Mr Kenny YIU Kam-hung
mHELE Mr Ricky Wong Sai-kay
FRELRE Mr WONG Siu-kai
2RS4 Mr Elton LEUNG Shi-kan
T3 2 wit 5T A Mr Mike TSUI Yick-him

BHELLZ+(H2018%F 11 A13H#)

Ms KAN Wai-chi (from 13 November 2018)

BEEBLEE(E2018F 11 120 10)

Mr CHUA Kwok-yeung (up to 12 November 2018)

BLRRus (EXAZXE)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

MREES RESEARCH COMMITTEE

ZERE MEMBERSHIP

AEM B2 () Professor Grace SZETO Pui-yuk (Chairperson)
mEX L Ms SIU Sin-man

REREE Mr TSUI Wai-tim

MY BIE L Dr TO Kwong-yuk

MoEEE - KNPt

Dr Mandy HO Mang-yee, JP

BZRBRBE(EAZE)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

T—HEL TRE > KFEL(EFELE)

Ir Dr Derrick PANG Yat-bond, JP (Co-opt Member)
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EEZLESZERE

‘EYEE

tERZ2RREBHAEES CHEMICAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADVISORY COMMITTEE

EEgE MEMBERSHIP

MEBELT (FE) Dr TO Kwong-yuk (Chairman)

BEX L Ms SIU Sin-man

AE M & 2% Professor Grace SZETO Pui-yuk

M EFE L Dr Priscilla LEE Pui-sze

mERALE Mr WONG Chi-ming

FREHRE Professor LEE Hung-kay

ZEMAEE(H2018F8 A 22 H#E)

Mr HUN Sau-ming (from 22 August 2018)

SRz (E2018E8 A 21 AIb)

Ms KWOK Nga-yan (up to 21 August 2018)

B I 5 A Mr Donald WUN Kwok-fung
MEE L4 Mr LAM Kin-kwan
FiREE L Dr Raymond FONG Wai-hung

EESE4(H2019F1 A2H#E)

Dr Philip Wong Kin-ho (from 2 January 2019)

EEBEA (ZE2019F41 A1 81E)

Dr Paul POON Kwok-ming (up to 1 January 2019)

aBEE L

Dr Edwin LUI Kon-hung

hFREBL

Dr NG Ping-chung

BLRR®E (EXAZLR)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

Hﬁ%ﬁﬁééi&i\%— REREBRERZE

OSH STAR ENTERPRISE - RMAA SAFETY

RAEEEZRRE ACCREDITATION SCHEME STEERING
COMMITTEE
ZEEE MEMBERSHIP
RESEL - K¥FHt(FE) Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP (Chairman)
EXE N Dr David MONG Tak-yeung

BOAT A (H2019F 2 A14 B 4E)

Mr WAN Chi-ping (from 14 February 2019)

B ALEE(E2019F2 A13 1)

Mr MAK Ping-sang (up to 13 February 2019)

Mt E

Mr Thomas HUI Hoi-hon

HEHEE (20188 A22H )

Mr TSE Cheuk-man (from 22 August 2018)

EMEEE(E2018E8A21 HIE)

Mr Gordon WONG Sai-yau (up to 21 August 2018)

EHEL A MH(HB 201848 A22 Hi)

Mr Jimmy POON Wing-fai, MH (from 22 August 2018)

ez 4+ (ZE2018FE8A21 B L)

Mr Ronnie NG Wing-fat (up to 21 August 2018)

BZREBE(EAZLR)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)
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BXRERHANEES OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
ZBEE MEMBERSHIP
MEBEL (£E) Dr LAM Chor-yin (Chairman)
B EEE Mr Allen CHENG Siu-kai
RYERLZ T Ms Wendy YUEN Miu-ling
LKA B Dr Henry KONG Wing-ming
PR=ERE Dr CHAN King-hong
EHELEA(H2018F 11 A158#E) Mr WONG Ming-hei (from 15 November 2018)
TS A (2201811 B1481E) Mr LEE Kai-yip (up to 14 November 2018)
= i % B2 Dr KWOK Kai-him
BT RESE A Mr Patrick SO Tsz-wah
mEELt Ms Katherine SHIU Ka-wan
ERiEESE Dr CHIM Pak-wing
MHEESEE - KFEt Dr Mandy HO Mang-yee, JP
BeRE®%E(EAZLE) Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

YN ETEXSEREERIHE CONSTRUCTION AND DESIGNATED

SEGEBEZES INDUSTRIES INJURED EMPLOYEES
RETURN-TO-WORK PILOT SCHEME
STEERING COMMITTEE

EZEE2E MEMBERSHIP
NEBEE(FE) Dr LAM Chor-yin (Chairman)
hEEB L A& Mr Ronnie NG Wing-fat
EEE A Mr Jimmy POON Wing-fai, MH
EIpSES Mr Patrick KWAN Mei-sing
[EE S R L Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP
7R Dr LAW Sheung-wai

B 1 T A Mr Patrick SO Tsz-wah

1 En Ms Katherine SHIU Ka-wan
R Ot B Dr WAN Yuen-kong
BeRRenzxs(E4% Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)
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‘EYEE

REXERZBREEZES CATERING SAFETY & HEALTH STEERING
COMMITTEE

E84E MEMBERSHIP

BRoK &2 S & (F /&) Mr CHAN Wing-on (Chairman)

A= E &4 (20188 A22H#E)

Mr Jacky HO Yan-ching (from 22 August 2018)

FRBtEE(ZE2018E8 421 A1)

Mr FONG Shing-chau (up to 21 August 2018)

fREB 2+ (H2018F 8 A 22 Hi#E)

Ms Helen CHAN (from 22 August 2018)

ERmAiZt(Z2018E8 421 1)

Ms LO Shuk-han (up to 21 August 2018)

izl ¥

Mr WOO Lun

ZHEBESRE(H2018FE8A22H#)

Mr LEE Chung-yan (from 22 August 2018)

BUELE  IRFEE  FEFE
(220188 A21HIE)

Mr YEUNG Wai-sing, BBS, MH
(up to 21 August 2018)

S E (H2018E8 A22H )

Mr Calvin TSE (from 22 August 2018)

EERELEE(E2018E8 821 A1)

Mr LEE Yuen-hong (up to 21 August 2018)

#ERERE Mr LO Tai-chi
2B B8 5t & Mr LEUNG Kui-tang

MEREA (RH2018FE8 A 22 HiE)

Mr LAM Fung-yuen (from 22 August 2018)

BHESEE(ZE2018FE8A21HIE)

Mr LAW Hak-sing (up to 21 August 2018)

Efp=Sit (H2018E8A22H#)

Mr Henry MA (from 22 August 2018)

&8sk (ZE2018E8 821 1)

Mr Kelvin YAU Kam-wing (up to 21 August 2018)

BRETE

Mr KWOK Wang-hing

ﬂé‘

HarFEi -

Mrs TANG YU Li-hua

BSaT S (H2019F2 A148#)

Mr WAN Chi-ping (from 14 February 2019)

Bﬁ% El

LA (E2019F2 A13 8 1F)

Mr MAK Ping-sang (up to 13 February 2019)

BZRE®RE (EAZE)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

TBEEE EMPLOYEES’ PARTICIPATION SCHEME
(OSHEPS) SCREENING COMMITTEE

ZEEE MEMBERSHIP

HEYL LR (E/E) Ir Helen KWAN Po-jen (Chairperson)

I BRES Mr Allen CHENG Siu-kai

2EH TR Ir Alex LEUNG Wai-hung

BMEELZ+(H2018% 11 A13A#)

Ms KAN Wai-chi (from 13 November 2018)

ZHIBHEE(Z2018F 11 A128 1)

Mr CHUA Kwok-yeung (up to 12 November 2018)

BiRRus(EAZR)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

BERZRRANTEAEEERE

HONG KONG SAFETY AND HEALTH
CERTIFICATION SCHEME STEERING
COMMITTEE

EZEXE MEMBERSHIP
RESEL - K¥F@Ht(FE) Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP (Chairman)
BEZLtL Ms CHIANG Lai-ling

FZEFRLE  WEAEE - KF@tL

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP

eIk E (201811 A7 HAR)

Mr Danny HUNG (from 7 November 2018)

2EZHEE(E2018F 11 A6 L)

Mr Alfred LEUNG (up to 6 November 2018)

mHEESRE - KF@t

Mr Simon WONG Kit-lung, JP

BHIREE

Mr YEUNG Chung-yuen

BB A - BEEE (H2018F 8 A22HIE)

Mr Jimmy POON Wing-fai, MH (from 22 August 2018)

& FEE (E2018FE8 A21 A 1F)

Mr Ronnie NG Wing-fat (up to 21 August 2018)

BHAREE

Mr LAU Chee-tim

HH A5

Mr Thomas HUI Hoi-hon

BIAT A E(B2019%F2 A148#)

Mr WAN Chi-ping (from 14 February 2019)

B ELE A (ZE2019F2 A13 A1)

Mr MAK Ping-sang (up to 13 February 2019)

BLZREBRFE (EAZER)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)
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BZREJALE-DOUBEXRZR
RAXEHEEEZES

EEZESZERE
Y

OSH STAR ENTERPRISE - RECYCLING

INDUSTRY SAFETY ENHANCEMENT PILOT

SCHEME STEERING COMMITTEE

EEEE MEMBERSHIP
PRGSEL - KFE@L(£E) Dr Alan CHAN Hoi-shou, JP (Chairman)
ERE LA - KBS (H2018F 8 A22H#E)  MrJimmy POON Wing-fai, MH (from 22 August 2018)

&2 EE (ZE2018E8 A21 A L)

Mr Ronnie NG Wing-fat (up to 21 August 2018)

BREXE

Mr LO Yiu-chuen

SEd A (201848 A 22 HiR)

Mr TSANG Wai (from 22 August 2018)

2kiE+ (E2018E8 A21 A 1b)

Dr LAU Yiu-shing (up to 21 August 2018)

BRI VESE A&

Mr CHAN Pui-ho

HAEELEE (H2018FE8 A22 HiE)

Mr LAM Yau-kwai (from 22 August 2018)

MEESLA (E2018FE8 A21 HE)

Mr LAM Lung-wai (up to 21 August 2018)

HEL L+ (H2018F 11 A13 %)

Ms KAN Wai-chi (from 13 November 2018)

BRIGEE(Z20184F 11 A1281E)

Mr CHUA Kwok-yeung (up to 12 November 2018)

BLRE®%E(EALE) Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

REHEBAEZES SAFE COMMUNITY ADVISORY
COMMITTEE

ZEEE MEMBERSHIP

REELLT  BEIHE . KFEE(EE) Ms NG Wai-yee, MH, JP (Chairperson)

LIPS Mr Allen CHENG Siu-kai

FFEAE R A4 Dr Eric HUI Ming-tung

Fihni A Mr Albert LEE Shui-chiu

RERZL Ms YUEN Man-yee

iz Kl e Mr CHUNG Kam-lun

2R+ (20188 A 22 Hi#E)

Ms LAU Suk-han (from 22 August 2018)

EME{THE(E2018E 8 A21 HIE)

Mr Thomas WONG Chung-hang (up to 21 August 2018)

o] 8% 5 £

Mr Stanley HO Ngai-kam

REHEE  LEEFEZE(H2018F 8 A22HE)

Mr LEUNG Ho-kwan, MH (from 22 August 2018)

BRREE  BEFHS > K F@t
(220188 A21HIE)

Mr YEUNG Wai-foon, MH, JP
(up to 21 August 2018)
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ZEHEBANEZEE (H) SAFE COMMUNITY ADVISORY
COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

EZEEE MEMBERSHIP

okl =+ Ms YAU Wing-sin

FkREE Mr LEE Wing-man

EEEEE Dr WONG Tak-cheung

BZEHEE - MERFMEE - KFHL

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP

BOHEE(H2018FE8 A22A#)

Mr Kamen LAW Yat-sun (from 22 August 2018)

MigsEe £ (ZE2018E8 421 1)

Mr LEE Kam-fai (up to 21 August 2018)

BZRERFE (EXAZE)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)

FNBECEBTREDHEEES

OSH ENHANCEMENT SCHEME FOR SME
COMMITTEE

ZBEE MEMBERSHIP

SEBELT(FE) Dr David MONG Tak-yeung (Chairman)
BmEXL T Ms SIU Sin-man

B ERE Mr Allen CHENG Siu-kai

BARESLE Mr LO Tai-chi

BB S Mr WOO Lun

FHREEE Mr LEE Pui-tack

BB &St Mr LIU Kwok-ming

VN Mr LAM Tin-fu

SREREESL A (201848 A22H )

Mr Eddie CHEUNG Kam-wah (from 22 August 2018)

REESE(ZE2018E8 A21 HIE)

Mr Geoffrey LAl Kwok-fai (up to 21 August 2018)

THELLE

Mr YU Chung-hang

EEEEE (H2018FE8 A 22 HiR)

Mr FUNG Chi-hing (from 22 August 2018)

FPEEFELEE (ZE2018E8 821 A1)

Mr YAU Wah-hong (up to 21 August 2018)

h¥fERE  KREBE

Mr Lawrence NG San-wa, MH

EEEL+(H2018%F 11 A13A#K)

Ms KAN Wai-chi (from 13 November 2018)

BRIGEE(Z20184F 11 A1281E)

Mr CHUA Kwok-yeung (up to 12 November 2018)

BLZREBE(EAZER)

Executive Director, OSHC (Ex-officio member)
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Safety & Health Committees

1. RRERKRBEXZZRBEZES

1. CATERING & HOSPITALITY SERVICES

SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE

RGBS E (FE) Mr KWOK Wang-hing (Chairman)

RREBRITESY Eating Establishment Employees General Union

WrAELLT (FEE) Mrs TANG YU Li-hua (Vice-Chairperson)

EEREEEER ’ET Hong Kong Tourism Industry Employees’ General Union

(CIESE S Mr Jacky HO Yan-ching

REASRERIS Chinese and Western Food Workers Union

PR o 18 % A& Mr Henry CHAN Kwong-fai

EBAEBI® Hong Kong Union of Chinese Workers in Western
Style Employment

E?ﬁiﬁf‘ﬁ_’i._ Mr Chuck HSU Ngai-yuen

EEEEEATE Hong Kong Tour Guides General Union

B9 & Mr TSANG Wai-shing

BEREBHRNREE RS Hotels, Food and Beverage Employees Association

BARESLE Mr LO Tai-chi

BAREIXEES Hong Kong and Kowloon Tea-house Workers
General Union

?_@Efﬁ Vi Mr LAW Wai-hung

BNLEBREATS

Hong Kong and Kowloon Restaurant & Café
Workers General Union

phimE k&
HERKRKRMABRHE

Mr YIU Moon-fai
Kwan Sang Catering Professional Employees
Association

THREL
ERERMEBGARADA

Dr Leslie WONG Pak-yuen
The Hong Kong Food Council Ltd

RBRAEE  LEHS
EBIRITHBE

Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam, MH
Hong Kong Association of Travel Agents

wsEERLZL Ms Winnie WONG

EREBEEHE Hong Kong Hotels Association
HEE A Mr Tony CHONG

ERIREXEES Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong
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Safety & Health Committees

1. CATERING & HOSPITALITY SERVICES
SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

Mr FUNG Bing-hau
Hong Kong Catering Industry Association

BB LE(H2018FE 10411 H#L)
EBEREE e

Mr LEE Chung-yin (from 11 October 2018)
The Association for Hong Kong Catering Services
Management Ltd

AR es & (E2018F 10 810 1F)
BEREREERE

Mr HO Kam-wing (up to 10 October 2018)
The Association for Hong Kong Catering Services
Management Ltd

HEE LA (201810424 A )
EBEYHBERS

Mr Calvin TSE (from 24 October 2018)
Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related Trades

AL (22018410 A23H1E) Mr HO Kin (up to 23 October 2018)
EREREEHE Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related Trades
HA B O A& Mr WOO Lun

BREB(RR)EXEHE Association of Restaurant Managers Ltd

PR FEE S Mr CHAN Cheung-chor

BNANHAEBEREREARAA

Estates’ Restaurants (HK) Merchant Association Ltd

R{ERTE Mr Andrew LAl Wai-keung
E2TRk Labour Department
fa] 12 1 55 4 Mr Boris HO Wai-hung

FEBELRERE

The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety
and Health Associations
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Safety & Health Committees

2. BEXZE2RRBEZES

hELEE  REHE (F/F)
BEREXDBEREBE

2. CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE

Mr Lawrence NG San-wa, MH (Chairman)
Hong Kong Construction Sub-contractors Association

BB (H2019FE2 A20HF#E)
EAREEY

Mr Conrad FUNG Kwok-keung (from 20 February 2019)
The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd

BEREAE (FIEE) Mr CHEUNG Hau-hong (Vice-Chairman)
(22019F2819H 1) (up to 19 February 2019)
BEXREEY The Hong Kong Construction Association Ltd
SEAE N A Mr FAN Chor-man
EAEKEEER TS Hong Kong Brick-laying & Construction Trade Workers’
Union
B IESAE Mr LAW Sai-hung

ERREREEIREEXE RS

Hong Kong Construction and Decoration Workers
Association

R #H) 8% 5t A Mr YIM Kong-shing

EAREXRTE Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees General
Union

=N 5 Mr LI Siu-lun

BEARKEREFHENEZEHS Hong Kong Decoration Trade & Building Maintenance
Employees Association

RELCEE Mr LAl Chi-yan

BRLRRERT S Hong Kong and Kowloon Painters General Union

Ak A& Mr HO Ping-tak

BAEHRW I Hong Kong and Kowloon Bamboo Scaffolding Workers
Union (Tung-king)

BB %k & Mr CHOW Kin-hang

aAfft A TRAEE (AAREEERZEAN)EE

Registered Minor Works Contractor (Individual and

we Authorized Signatory) Employees Association

PR 1E S5 & Mr Gregory CHAN Ching

EEMERRES The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong
R ESLE Mr NG Choi-wah

=
EREEXEAERL S

Hong Kong General Building Contractors Association
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Safety & Health Committees

2. CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Y ER e Mr Flord SO Yu-hang

BEEMEEREERRA Hong Kong & Kowloon Scaffolders General Merchants
Association Ltd

mBIE S £ Mr WONG Kwok-wah

AN TRARAES

Minor Works Contractor Association

I5 B 5 A4
AN TRARERBEABEER AR

Mr Kent LAM Jing-kwok
Registered Minor Works Contractor Signatory Association
Ltd

BRgb ¥+ (201942 A21 H#E)
BEFE

Ms CHAN Miu-ling (from 21 February 2019)
Buildings Department

ML A (E2019F 2 208 1H)
BEFE

Mr CHOI Sheung-ming (up to 20 February 2019)
Buildings Department

2R E Mr Timothy LAU Chee-tim
BEAFEZES Hong Kong Housing Authority
RIKB e A Mr NG Siu-kwan

BER Marine Department

EoxHERE(H2018F4 A 11 BEE)
BT

Mr MO Wing-hung (from 11 April 2018)
Labour Department

FHEE(E2018FE 44108 11H)
BITR

Mr Murphy YUEN Tsz-lok (up to 10 April 2018)
LLabour Department

ERFEE Mr WONG Shiu-cheung
BRB Development Bureau

PrIgfg e+ Ms YUEN Hou-yee
BEEES Construction Industry Council

EmEL Iilii i

Ir Dr Jackson LAU Chi-keung

BAETIIZMEZ The Hong Kong Institute of Engineers
PR & Lo & Mr Frederick CHAN Yuk-ki
BEAREMEY The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
DR e Mr Johnny SHING Wai-lam

BEMELRERS

The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety and
Health Associations
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Safety & Health Committees

3. MEXRRAHEEMBRER

ZERREEZES

BEXE L - TREAN(£E)
EAERETIRERHS

3. ELECTRICAL & MECHANICAL TRADE
& REPAIR OF VEHICLES SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE

Ir Dr Sammy WAN Kin-man (Chairman)
The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors Ltd

SROKFRIEE (FIEE)
BNERTREEXERMBTE

Mr CHEUNG Wing-ho (Vice-Chairman)
Hong Kong & Kowloon Electrical Engineering &
Appliances Trade Workers Union

ZRE%E(H2019F 1 A28 #E)

BR#EETIRIBEHS

Mr LEE Yau-tong (from 28 January 2019)
Government Electrical and Mechanical Works
Supervisors, Craftsmen and Workmen Association

SR ABAEE(ZE2019%F 1 A27 1)

BN#EETHRIREGS

Mr CHEUNG Lap-chung (up to 27 January 2019)
Government Electrical and Mechanical Works
Supervisors, Craftsmen and Workmen Association

BERAE
BEAEREXERRS

Mr LI Yuk-tat
Hong Kong Vehicle Repairing Industry Employee
General Union

PR A2 &8 SE A Mr CHAN Chor-wing

BEATERHRLER T RS Hong Kong Air-conditioning & Refrigerating Trades
Workers General Union

08 T A Mr WAN Chee-keung

FEREBMABENETE DS

The Hong Kong Gas and Fuel Practitioners Association

FEELE Mr KWOK Hing-wun

BEAERERTE Hong Kong General Union of Lift and Escalator
Employees

Tt Ms WONG Siu-han

BNTEES B Hong Kong and Kowloon Trades Union Council

PEMEE Mr LEUNG Tat-chun

BNLEFIEBIAS Hong Kong and Kowloon Electronics Industry
Employees’ General Union

EEEH LT Dr CHENG Lai-sim

BEALEHRS Federation of Hong Kong Industries

BEINR 5 A& Mr YIU Chow-leung

EAAHEREE Hong Kong Association of Petroleum Products
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Safety & Health Committees

3. ELECTRICAL & MECHANICAL TRADE
& REPAIR OF VEHICLES SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Mr WU Chak-hung
The Hong Kong Air Conditioning & Refrigeration
Association Ltd

SN Mr HUNG Lok-tin

AAEFEES The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Ltd
BmEHLE Mr LAW Chi-kwong

EEEREHS The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association
BEENEAE Mr CHOI Kan-man

EEERIEBLARA Hong Kong Electrical Contractors’ Association Ltd
BRXEE Mr MOK Ka-man

BTER Labour Department

BIEB AL SE 4 (201810 A4 B #E)
WEITRRE

Mr KWONG Chiu-fan (from 4 October 2018)
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

AL (E2018E 10 A3 1E)
WETREE

Mr Kenny HUI Wai-keung (up to 3 October 2018)
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

DEER v Mr Johnny SHING Wai-lam
BEEIREMES The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
BOSRHE £ Mr AU Ho-fo

EABERSREYE

The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety
and Health Associations
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Safety & Health Committees

4. BERBEXRZENBEZES

4. HEALTH CARE SERVICES SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE

RrHEEE(LE) Dr LEUNG Chi-chiu (Chairman)
AEEBEg The Hong Kong Medical Association
RE=EL (BFE) Dr Bacon NG Fung-leung (Vice-Chairman)

EEHERAEERYFEH

Joint Conference of Hong Kong Health Care
Professional Organizations

REREE
BELAHERERTHE

Mr NG Sai-chung
Hong Kong Public Medical Staff Association

HEEERN B A (20188 A 14 )
EAENLABRERE RS

Dr MAK Siu-king (from 14 August 2018)
Hong Kong Public Doctors’ Association

BRST A EE £ (220188 A 130 1)
EENLBERLERS

Dr Pierre CHAN (up to 13 August 2018)
Hong Kong Public Doctors’ Association

HEWLEE(H2018FE6 A24H#)
EBHEPENEETIHRE

Mr TAI Kwan-yu (from 24 June 2018)
Hong Kong Fire Services Department Ambulance
Officers Association

SEMSEE(E2018E6 A23H 1)
EREENENEE I RS

Mr NG Wai-kong (up to 23 June 2018)
Hong Kong Fire Services Department Ambulance
Officers Association

IR v Mr TANG Tak-ho

EEBRBIWS Hong Kong Hospitals Employees Association
15K &% A& Mr YEUNG Wing-chiu

BEEETHE Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff

28R 2L+ Ms LAU Kam-ping

EERBUHEEDS Association of Health Service Workers
EEE L Ms POON Wai-yin

BBy P EIEERTe Hospitals, Clinics and Nursing Workers Union
SERRALL Ms MA Lai-han

ErEEREIHE Hospital Authority Staff Association

BRER X+ Ms CHAN Wai-ling

HEENE Social Welfare Department

EHERE Mr LO Wei-kai

EBLERBHE The Elderly Services Association of Hong Kong
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Safety & Health Committees

4. HEALTH CARE SERVICES SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Ms Manbo MAN Bo-lin, MH
The Hong Kong Private Hospitals Association

REBIELZLT Ms CHEUNG Lai-wah

BEToRGB e The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

PR 18 4 55 A4 Mr CHAN Wai-kuen

EE B (MEERE) Fire Services Department (Ambulance Service)
BB AT Ms CHOI Yuen-kwai

BEE Department of Health

REGEE Mr YUEN Chi-man

EREER Hospital Authority

Bk % o B8 Dr CHAN Hon-keung

BT Labour Department

ARG E(H2018FE 4 A27H#E)
EEBMETIERBE

Mr LAl Tai-ming (from 27 April 2018)
The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety and
Health Associations

FEELEE(E2018FE4 26 1F)
EERETIERBT

Mr Edward WAN Wai-hoi (up to 26 April 2018)
The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety and
Health Associations
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Safety & Health Committees

5. EHOEZRHABETEX

ZERRBREZES

RERKEE(EE)
BERNECEERS

5. IMPORT EXPORT & WHOLESALE

RETAIL TRADE SAFETY & HEALTH
COMMITTEE

Mr NG Ka-wing (Chairman)
The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and
Medium Business Ltd

BEEE (FEE) Mr HAN Ping (Vice-Chairman)

BEXFREDAODES The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’
Association

RENH L Ms Joan CHEUNG Wood-man

BEEE BEEERS

Hong Kong Department Stores & Commercial Staff
General Union

HREEL T Ms Pauline CHONG Ling-lung
BEERBEREEHE Hong Kong Services Industry Employees Association
AiEdk A Mr KWAN Tak-ming

FEREABRBBATEBRERS

Association of Hong Kong Employees in Wine, Spirit and
Food Shops and Supermarkets

PRI+ Ms CHEN Chu-ying

BEEBLIE Hong Kong Union of Chinese Workers in Western
Style Employment

B k& Mr YAU Yiu-shing

EREHOBESNEEHS

Hong Kong Import and Export Trade Employees
Association

Bl L
EmEERTEXEER

IuE>

Ms Sindy AU Sin-lai
Commodities Promotion and Retailing Employees
General Union

TEBLEAE Mr Leslie LEE Yin-shing

BEARELEES The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
BEELE Mr Adrian CHOU

EEtOEe The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association
KRB+ Ms Ruth YU

EATEEEEHe Hong Kong Retail Management Association
TWMKREE Mr Frank LEE King-ting

AbEme The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
wEERE Mr David CHU Tak-wai

BT Labour Department

FRAIELT Dr LEE Choi-hung

EBEANEINESES The Hong Kong Ergonomics Society
MEREEE Mr TO Mo-tsun

BEREMREGLESS

Hong Kong Institute of Occupational and
Environmental Hygiene
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Safety & Health Committees

6. INFORMATION AND
COMMUNICATIONS SAFETY &
HEALTH COMMITTEE

B EE (EHE) Mr Kenny YIU Kam-hung (Chairman)
BEAEGREEE Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association
BRI E (BIFEE) Mr Eric FAN Kin-man (Vice-Chairman)
EAENNEne Hong Kong Information Technology Federation
ZIE & Mr PANG Siu-wai

BEEIT. AHhE |.T. People Association of Hong Kong

= R B8 5 A Mr LUI Chan-kam

BEBAEABHE

Hong Kong Communication Industry Employees
Association

WEREE
FEEEAMBRBRIEAEBGS

Mr TANG Wai-tong
Hong Kong Information Technology & Network
Engineering Employees Association

=HEELEE
BEXBMELETE

Mr WONG Yun-ping
Hong Kong Telecommunications Industry Employees
General Union

@iﬁﬁi Mr CHAN Chi-hong

MEMBIEAE S Computer Information Technology Employees Association
BRiEZ L Ms Terri CHAN Kim-man
HEELIRBEEERAA Hong Kong Publishing Federation Ltd
hREX+ Ms Mia NG Ling-kwan
SRR EN e Communications Association of Hong Kong
YRS O Mr Eric LAl Chun-fai

BEAWMELS The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong
HHERE K & Mr WOO Ming-lau
BT Labour Department
il Mr Patrick SINN Kwok-chung
EEHERED Hong Kong Publishing Professionals Society

& 8 22 =
BEBMEXL2RERS

Ms Agnes CHOW Kim-mei
The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety and
Health Associations

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019 1 91 }



Bf &% 6

TEZ2REEZTESZERE

Appendix 6: Membership of the Industry-based "B g NI =

Safety & Health Committees

7. DREEXZENRBEZES

mUELLE(LE)
BEYRHE

7. LOGISTICS & FREIGHT TRANSPORT
INDUSTRY SAFETY & HEALTH
COMMITTEE

Mr Ricky WONG Sai-kay (Chairman)
Hong Kong Logistics Association

BERLEE(FEE)
EMKHERERTS

Mr YEUNG Lin-pik (Vice-Chairman)
Goods Loading, Unloading and Transportation
Workers Union

PRIKEE 5 E Mr Lewis CHAN Siu-wah
FERBERERATS Motor Transport Workers General Union
KB R A& Mr CHEUNG Shu-wang

BEERAMEEXRTIAES

The Staffs and Workers Union of Hong Kong Civil Airlines

E/%E EERYMREIHE

Mr LI Chi-yung
Hong Kong Storehouses, Transportation & Logistics
Staff Association

BEREH AL
EEMEEERFREXTE

%

Mr WONG Kwok-yui
Hong Kong Air Freight Transport and Express Transport
Employee Union

BRaEF 54 Mr CHAN Dik-sau

EREREBRIAS Container Transportation Employees General Union
B A8 458 % A Mr TANG Shi-shing

Wi 7TEEE THhe Airport Air Freight Employees’ Association
BENILE Mr TSANG Hin-kit

BMERERXTE Lighter and Cargo-boat Transportation Workers Union
BE8%E Mr LIU Cheuk-yin

PFREREREXELEZET Central Container Handling Safety Committee

B BB ST A Mr SO Kwok-wai

BEBETEEWLARAA Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals Ltd

ST AE Mr NG Kwong

BEARBEEHE Hong Kong Courier Association
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Safety & Health Committees

7. LOGISTICS & FREIGHT TRANSPORT
INDUSTRY SAFETY & HEALTH
COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

RIRER L Mr Alan LEUNG Kam-wah

BEXERBEEHERAR Hong Kong Godown Association Ltd

B B 2 S A Mr Eric YIM Hing-yip

BERAEMEEFIEERA Hong Kong Cargo-vessel Traders’ Association Ltd

MEREE Mr Bruce YAU Tat-ming

BEAEEYREHBEERAA Hong Kong Association of Freight Forwarding and
Logistics Ltd

HkEtrsE Mr Michael YIP Chun-kit

BEAEERETHEERAT Hong Kong Container Tractor Owner Association Ltd

A ELL L Ms Anna HUNG Yee-wah

BEERISERR Airport Authority Hong Kong

REBEE Mr CHU Chi-wai

BERE Marine Department

PREZER K4 Mr CHAN Wai-leung

BT Labour Department

FEELEE Mr WONG Chi-hang

EHE Transport Department

LEE LA Mr SUM Tak-yin

FEEBMEXLERENRS

The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety and
Health Associations
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Safety & Health Committees

8. MEXZE2RREZES

8. MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY

SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE

FIERE(FE) Mr WONG Siu-kai (Chairman)
BEABEMBEEBEBRATF Hong Kong United Dockyards Ltd
EHRIELT (B/FEE) Dr CHUNG Sai-wing (Vice-Chairman)

BNERHERBES

Hong Kong and Kowloon Plastic Products Merchants
United Association Ltd

RXIBRAE

EELcEFRIRERTIS

Mr YU Man-pui
Hong Kong Metal and Electronic Industries General Union

RS
%T %EUF"J.EHJEZZ% ]

Mr WONG Ho-keung
Hong Kong Printing and Publishing Media Industry
Workers Union

RIWEEE Mr NG Ping-hong
BEEBERXEMS Hong Kong Rubber & Plastic Industry Employees Union
mEERE Mr WONG Hoi-cheung

FeBamsEEATS

Hong Kong United Dockyards Group Employees
General Union

NIoE: S
AHEEBTE

Mr LAM Fa-keung
Laundry Trade Employees’ Union

miEREE  KEBE KAFHEL

Mr WONG Kam-kuen, MH, JP

BLEeMKREXER TS Hong Kong & Kowloon Gold Ornaments & Jewellery Trade
Workers’ Union
FE KB St A& Mr LAl Wing-ming

BIEERETS

Hong Kong & Kowloon Ship Building & Repairing Trade
Workers Union

SRAER 2+ Ms CHEUNG Kwai-ying

B HMAER T ES Hong Kong and Kowloon Spinning, Weaving and
Dyeing Trade Workers General Union

TEAKE Mr LEE Tak-ming

BNEBRBABRTSE

Hong Kong and Kowloon Plastic Products Free
Workers Union

RESLE
MEEMXBEERAR]

Mr Kandy CHAN Ki
The Southern District Shipbuilding Association Ltd
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‘EYeE

8. REXLZNEBEZES (&) 8. MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY

SAFETY & HEALTH COMMITTEE
(CONTINUED)

REZEE Mr Dennis NG Kwok-on
EETPEREBES S The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
At 8 5 A Mr Francis TSE Tit-shing
AAHREEE The Hong Kong Printers Association
THEXEAE Mr Benson LI Hei-man
ERELAKREG The Laundry Association of Hong Kong Ltd
PRIEE L Mr CHAN Tak-che
BERAERBERS The Hong Kong Chinese Textiles Mills Association
BT B e A Mr HUI Man-wai
ERAEBEREERRAA] The Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Ltd
RIKBEE Mr NG Siu-kwan
BERE Marine Department
EoK L E Mr LAW Wing-chiu
BIR Labour Department
Eom TS+ Dr LI Chi-moon

BERXL2RERS

The Hong Kong Federation of Occupational Safety and
Health Associations

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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Appendix 6: Membership of the Industry-based WE'@

Safety & Health Committees

9. ME REFHLEREDKEZZR

RiEEZRES

REFRELE (E/E)
TEEBMMYEEBENEELS

9. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,

ENVIRONMENTAL HYGIENE AND
RECYCLING SERVICES SAFETY AND
HEALTH COMMITTEE

Mr Elton LEUNG Shi-kan (Chairman)
Hong Kong General Union of Security and Property
Management Industry Employees

BRIZE L& (BIFE) Mr CHAN Pui-ho (Vice-Chairman)
RREBTE Eco Industry Labour Union
BR3E E 4 Mr CHAN Ka-hing

BEEMMHEEXAEHRS

Hong Kong Landscape and Arboriculture Professional
General Union

MREERE ST £
FEERR MRANBENEXEHE

Mr LAM Lung-wai
Hong Kong Environmental Services Logistics and
Cleaning Employees Association

WA S A Mr LAM Siu-hung

EARREREER T Hong Kong Environmental Services Employees Union
BEHs L Ms LAU Wai-yin

RERBREEHS Home Services Employees Association

AERLZ L Ms CHOW Kwai-ying

BEBBLXERBUEXEHE

Commercial Organization and Domicile Services
Employees Association

BEIREE
BEEMERERRARHE

Mr TAM Kwok-wing
The Hong Kong Association of Property Management
Companies

BEIRR e (201941 A15A#)
BEREBEEESE

Mr KAN Chun-shing (from 15 January 2019)
Hong Kong Cleaning Association Ltd

PRENE S (E22019%F 1 A14810)
BB EEEE

Mr CHAN Kwok-keung (up to 14 January 2019)
Hong Kong Cleaning Association Ltd

PBRE%® A 2L Ms Doris CHAN Kam-yiith
BEERBEHE Hong Kong Pest Management Association
BE=3=Ftea Mr Daniel HO Tat-pui

EEERSRAERED S

Hong Kong Greening Contractors Association

96 ‘ WL BMERR o —F— UEE R —JURER



B £%6 :

‘EYeE

9. ¥ME
kgEZEE (&)

el e
BERRENBEXRS

BRELEREWREZZ

TEELZERREZESEZERE
Appendlx 6: Membership of the Industry-based

Safety & Health Committees

9. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,

ENVIRONMENTAL HYGIENE AND
RECYCLING SERVICES SAFETY AND
HEALTH COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Mr LAU Yiu-shing
Hong Kong Recycled Materials & Re-production Business
General Association Ltd

HIn B+ Ms Catherine YAN Sui-han
ABRBEHEERKNE R Environmental Services Contractors Alliance
BERRELE Mr Perry WONG Ka-chung

RYREEEE Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

HEMZ+ (H2018FE9 A 22 #)
EEREEZBE

Ms Helen HUNG Chin-pui (from 22 September 2018)
Hong Kong Housing Authority

RFEERLZ+(E2018FE9 A21HIE)
EEERELZES

Ms Clara LAI CHAN Wai-fan (up to 21 September 2018)
Hong Kong Housing Authority

REREE
BEEEHE

Mr CHAN Chi-ming
Hong Kong Housing Society

PR EE (H2019%51 416 A L)
BT

Mr LEUNG Lok-chuen (from 16 January 2019)
Labour Department

B+t (Z22019%1 4158 1F)
BTR

Ms FUNG King-yin (up to 15 January 2019)
Labour Department

BERENRRREHLES

Mr WONG Ming-hei
Hong Kong Institute of Occupational and Environmental
Hygiene

Occupational Safety and Health Council e Annual Report 2018-2019
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Appendix 6: Membership of the Industry-based WE'@

Safety & Health Committees

10. X REERB X

10. SEDENTARY & PROFESSIONAL

ZE2RRBERES SERVICES SAFETY & HEALTH
COMMITTEE
Rammm Tk (FE) Mr Mike TSUI Yick-him (Chairman)
BRRITEES Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong
EEREE(BIFE) Mr LAW Chi-ho (Vice-Chairman)
EENBEBEEANBES Hong Kong Clerical and Professional Employees General Union
mEEL A Mr TSUI Kai-yiu
BAENBAERE Hong Kong Clerical Employees General Union
20 5T A& Mr KWOK Chong
EAMEREBEEE NS Society of Hong Kong Real Estate Agents Ltd
B A Mr TANG Ka-kwan
EEFBEIE Hong Kong Union of Chinese Workers in Western Style

Employment

SRAM B+
FERBREATE

Ms Ronnie CHEUNG Lee-man
Hong Kong Insurance Practitioners General Union

B\ F+ Ms Anna LAU Wing-chi
EABTEREERS Hong Kong Banking Employees Association
hESHEAE Mr YIU Chi-kan

mRaEFEE (BT)

Senior Civil Service Council (Staff Side)

Ms Joyce TSANG Yuk-fan
Civil Service Bureau

FERIL L Ms Stella LEE Wai-fun

EEPERERS S The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
REREE Mr Ringo NG Wai-ngai

BEAPEEES The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce

HNERE 5 £ Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai

EAMERERES Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies General Association
FIRMESE A Mr Jonathan YAU Chun-hung

EARmEBE The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
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10. X R EXRKE 10. SEDENTARY & PROFESSIONAL

Z2RREZES (&) SERVICES SAFETY & HEALTH
COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

m=E RS E Mr Lawrence WONG

EEEEHAE Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong

PR AR I8 22 £ Ms Christina CHAN Shuk-han

BERLEES The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

BRIEMEAE Mr SO Kin-hung

oy Labour Department

FEREE Mr David LI Chi-ming

EEANNEREEED Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management

WmEL Dr OR Ka-lun

FEHEANEINEES The Hong Kong Ergonomics Society

Occupational Safety and Health Council ¢ Annual Report 2018-2019 929
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Appendix 7: Statistics Profile of Participants i W N =
Attending Training Courses

£ 5% # GENDER DISTRIBUTION

B
Male
81.9%

FE@ 2% AGE DISTRIBUTION

25.0%

£ 200% -
2 2
¢ 14.3%
o & 15.0%
m
®
s 100% -
< 5 10
w3
&

3 50% -

0.0% —

(18-25)  (26-30)
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15.1%

14.5%
13.8%

(31-35)  (36-40)  (41-45)

F# Age

22.2%

(46-50) (OVER 50)
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i MM Appendlx 7: Statistics Profile of Participants
Attending Training Courses

HEREE D EDUCATION LEVEL DISTRIBUTION

JNER
Primary School
4.5%

Hh=
Form 3
RBEHH E 8.9%
Degree or Above

33.6%

FER

Form 5
/ 23.5%

FERL BBFER
Matriculation / HKDSE
3.7%

BRRE BRUR/ BI2L
High Certificate / Higher Diploma /
Associate Degree
15.1%

BE /R
Certificate / Diploma
10.2%

TE&KE D # WORK EXPERIENCE DISTRIBUTION

30.0% — 0%
© 25.0% — 23.1%
o
£
R 9
R E 20.0% — 18.2%
F\II[ T 16.5%
= E 150%
_H D“., 11.4%
E( o 10.0% -
@ £
2 50% —
0.0% —
Lessthan1year (1-5Years)  (6-10Years)  (11-15Years) (16-20 Years) Over 20 Years
PME 1E5F 6Z10F 11E156 162205 20FH L
TR

Work Experience
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Appendix 7: Statistics Profile of Participants i W N =
Attending Training Courses

B2 / EH%9% OCCUPATION / PROFESSION DISTRIBUTION

YHAE
Clegc(a)!yStaff s s
L0 Professional

BIFAE 13.7%
Operator
13.6%

EEAB
Managerial
22.0%

Rt A&

Technical Staff \ ZERERES

25.0% Safety & Health Professional
17.7%

RIEE B9 # COURSE SPONSORSHIP DISTRIBUTION

BE
Self-supported

47.2%

x ExEE
Sponsored by Employer

52.8%
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i MM Appendlx 7: Statistics Profile of Participants
Attending Training Courses

1T% 2 # SECTOR DISTRIBUTION

HE - BE - BERBEAREE
. . Education, Medical and
Eh - AERBEMHE Personal Service
Transport, Warehouse and 8.3%
Communication
S8 R BERBABREE 13.5%

Finance, Insurance, Real

Estate and Commercial Service Bl
1.0% Manufacturing
#tE - BE - EHOES - 8.1%
RBRREEE

Wholesale, Retail, Trading,
Catering and Hotel

5.0% R

° e

Construction
26.3%

B | SEEHE J
Government / Statutory Body

28.4%

\ AR
Public Utilities

11.0%
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Appendix 8: Summary of Training Programmes ‘W’Er@
and Seminars

. ARRE REAH 2 mEBH
i RBEZEREERE 1,018 17,151
i BELZRIREEZEEZTRE 269 5,933
i AEBMALZEZERE 178 2,536
v BEZE2REREERE 150 2,398
v RERERE 48 939
vi IRMNZE2REEEREE 6 81

1,664 29,038

. 2ARAIBINREFER 423 12,106

. AREEE 38 6,829

IV. R2RBEEE 236 26,773
mYaEH 2,361 74,746
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Appendix 8: Summary of Training Programmes

and Seminars

Public Courses No. of No. of
Programmes Participants

i General Occupational Safety and Health Courses 1,013 17,151
ii Occupational Safety and Health Supervisor Courses 269 5,933
i Certificate of Competence Courses 178 2,536
iv. Occupational Safety and Health Management 150 2,398
Y% Boiler and Receiver Safety Courses 48 939
vi  Health and Safety Course for Graduate Engineer 6 81
1,664 29,038

In-Company Training 423 12,106
Open Seminars 38 6,829
Safety and Health Talks 236 26,773
Total 2,361 74,746
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